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COURT RESUMES ON 5 NOVEMBER 2016 (at 14:46) 

EVIDENCE FOR THE PLAINTIFF (CONTINUED)  

DAVID ROBERT LEWIS:  (s.u.o.)  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  Mr Lewis has indicated to me that 

he feels that  he did not  have suf f ic ient  opportuni ty in h is 5 

evidence-in-chief  to test i fy about certa in issues that  he feels 

he needs to have ment ioned during his evidence -in-chief  and 

maybe he can just address you direct ly on that .   I  indicated to 

h im that  i f  that was indeed the case, then i t  would be better for 

h im to –  for the cross-examinat ion to be br ief ly stopped so that 10 

he can speak about whatever i t  is  that  he feels.   But i t 's 

obviously up to Your Lordship to decide.  

COURT:  H'm, you have no object ion i f  we revert  back into 

evidence-in-chief?       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  No M'Lord.  15 

COURT:  And then you cont inue cross -examinat ion?       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  No M'Lord.  

COURT:  Okay.  This is i r regular,  Mr Lewis.   ---   H'm r ight .  

 And now I 'm going to g ive you an opportuni ty to lead 

evidence, but  th is is the last  occasion.   ---   Alr ight .  20 

 Right .   -- -   Sorry. . .  

 Well ,  what issues do you want to ra ise?  ---   H'm, i t 's  just 

the letter f rom Rashid Lombard to –  to myself  and corre -

spondence with Annel ien Dean with regard to my meet ing with 

Rashid Lombard.  25 
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 Just  wait .   - --   And there 's, sorry,  there 's jus t  some 

housekeeping.  I  neglected to –  there was a page missing f rom 

the second bundle.   I  just  real ised i t  was incorrect ly paginated.  

I  d idn' t  include the page so th is would be the,  h 'm...    

 Just . . .   - --   Missing page 5,  5 and 6 actual ly the –  of  the 5 

same, s imi lar issue.  So if  you –  i f  you just  at tach th is to the 

back I  suppose, of  the second bundle.  

 So th is would be. ..   - --   “Human Resources gets re l igion, 

January 2009”.   

 And you say th is was inadvertent ly. . .?  ---   I t  was lef t  out 10 

of  the. . .  

 I t 's  ment ioned as page 5.   ---   I t 's  ment ioned in the 

bundle.  

 But. . .   - --   I  bel ieve so.  

 But i t 's  not  page 5?  ---   H'm.. .   Where's my bundle?  15 

 The let ter f rom Cape Beth Din  is now 5.   ---   Yeah h 'm, 

that 's r ight ,  that 's r ight .   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  might I  suggest then let 's make the 

let ter f rom the Beth Din page 5A.  

COURT:  Ja.       20 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  But then I th ink the index. . .  

COURT:  No then everyth ing changes, you see.  So why don' t  

we just  leave i t  as i t  is?       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.  

COURT:  And we know that  i t 's  one page less and...  25 



COURT 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

102 D R LEWIS 

 

05.11.2009/14:46-16:00/EdB / . . .  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Let,  okay.  

COURT:  Let 's just insert  i t  as. . . ,  th is let ter as 5A.       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I  th ink the problem is the index is not  r ight .  

COURT :   Ja we‟ l l . . .        

MR KAHANOVITZ:  But let 's not  worry about that .  5 

COURT:  About i t .   - --   So M'Lord,  may I  proceed with my.. .?  

 Just . . .   Yes in a moment.   Just let  me just  sort  th is out.   

- --   Alr ight .          

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  i f  you hand us the document we' l l  

get  i t  punched.  10 

COURT:  Oh excel lent ,  thank you.      

MR KAHANOVITZ:  So that  you can put i t  in  the f i le .  Thanks.  

COURT:  Alr ight  what. . .?  Sorry,  the two issues that  you want 

to address?  ---   H'm, the f i rst issue is with regard to the 

correspondence between myself  and Rashid Lombard and 15 

Annel ien Dean.  

 Correspondence between.. .   - --   Correspondence ja.  

 Ja Lombard and Dean, okay.   ---   And the second issue is 

with regard to the re l igious environment at  –  at  Media 24, 

specif ical ly with  regard to the membership of certa in 20 

employees of  the organisat ion and their  af f i l ia t ion with the NG 

Kerk.    

 Okay.  Alr ight  let 's proceed.  ---   Alr ight .   The –  the 

two.. . ,  there 're two let ters.   The one is in the appl icant 's 

bundle of  documents.   Where is i t?  Alr ight  in appl icant 's 25 
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bundle of  documents.  

 Whose bundle?  ---   My –  my bundle.  

 First  or second?  ---   Fi rst ,  f i rst  bundle on page 3.   Page 

3,  i t 's  dated Wednesday May 24 2006 at  2:28 p.m.  

 Right ,  we can see that .  This is the let ter.   ---   Right .  5 

 What do you want to –  are you –  who wrote th is let ter?    

---   I  wrote th is let ter to Annel ien,  basical ly saying I 'd met with 

Rashid Lombard,  CEO of  espAfr ika and that  he'd l ike to know 

more about People 's Post and especia l ly the jazz coverage 

and that  he was keen to support  possib le jazz,  “Cape Jazz 10 

Great ser ies in conjunc t ion with a corporate sponsor.  

EspAfr ika have an archive of  jazz . . . ( intervent ion)”  

 You don't  have to read the let ter.   ---   Alr ight .   Right .  

 We can read the let ter.   ---   Sorry? 

 We can read the let ter.   ---   You, r ight .  15 

 What is the importance of  the let ter?  And.. .   - --   The 

importance of  th is is with regard to th is whole issue of  the 

re ject ion of  the Robbie –  Robbie story and the al legat ions 

made by Dean with regard to the,  you know, the plagiar ism or 

whatever;   that  th is occurred in the context  of  a  meet ing that 20 

occurred with Rashid Lombard.  I 've got  a let ter in my second 

bundle of  documents,  page 4,  f rom –  f rom Mr Lombard.  

 Page 4?  ---   Right .   He specif ical ly notes that he –  

according to h is research the jazz fest ival  says that  the 

. . . ( intervent ion) 25 
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 Sorry,  I 'm –  you know, you've lost  me.  ---   Sorry.  

 Page 4.   ---   Page 4 of  the. . .  

 On my bundle is the Press Code of  Ethics.   ---   Sorry the 

–  my second bundle of  documents.  

 Well  you must be –  you must be specif ic.   ---   Yes,  no 5 

sorry.  

 Otherwise i t 's  just  very d i f f icul t  for me to fo l low.  ---   Yes.  

 I 'm f inding i t  d if f icul t  enough as i t  is .   ---   Alr ight .  

 Now what 's th is let ter?  This is a letter f rom?  ---   From 

Mr Lombard.  10 

 Okay and what 's the signif icance of  th is let ter?  ---   H'm 

the,  wel l  f i rst  of  a l l  the –  my meet ing with Mr Lombard did 

actual ly occur and he specif ical ly ra ised th is issue of  the fact 

that  the major i ty of  fest ival . . . ,  the people who go to the fest ival 

come f rom Retreat  than Athlone, Grassy Park and 15 

Landsdowne.  So there was a correspondence between the 

target market of  the People 's Post and the audience of  the 

Cape Town Jazz Fest ival .   He also ment ions that he –  th is 

would be target ing. . .   See r ight ,  ja,  he ment ions that  Winston 

Mankuku Ngozi,  Robbie Jansen, Alvin(?)  Andrew, To ny and 20 

Hi l ton Schi lder had agreed to a feature art ic le,  individual 

features at the People 's Post and that  he would avai l  archives 

of  h is jazz photography, spanning the past  28 years,  at  a fee.  

And he also ment ions the. ..  

 That 's what the letter says.   ---   Right .   This. . .  25 
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 But just  te l l  me, I . . .   - --   The signi f icance of  th is is that, 

because of  my re lat ionship with Mr Lombaard and my 

background at  South Press,  th is opportuni ty arose.  I  don't  

th ink i t  would have ar isen with –  i f  someone just  out  of  –  out  of  

journal ism school for instance.  Annel ien Dean had requested 5 

that  I  del iver the heart and soul of  the community to the 

People 's Post and we had both spoken at length at  –  wi th 

regards to the demographics and how best to tackle the 

demographics at  People 's Post and I 'd suggested that  the best 

way in terms of  nat ional reconci l ia t ion and –  and 10 

t ransformat ion and creat ing some kind of  heal ing,  that  i f  we 

covered the jazz that  th is would be a very good opportuni ty.   I t  

wi l l  a lso at t ract advert is ing to the Peo ple 's Post.  This let ter is 

an example of  Mr Lombard actual ly of fer ing advert is ing to the 

company and –  and some kind of  a. . .   He's a lso of fer ing his 15 

own photography at  a fee.   I  was given access to the jazz,  the 

–  the Cape Town Jazz Fest ival  jazz players,  the,  you know 

across the board I  was given te lephone numbers,  contacts, 

basical ly anyone I  wished to contact .   I t 's qui te unfortunate 

that  I  d idn' t  get  an opportuni ty to interview Winston Mankuku 20 

who is no longer with us.   So th is whole th ing actual ly occ urred 

in the context  of  a d iscussion about the demographics and the 

–  the Cape Town Jazz Fest ival .   Alr ight ,  so that 's my point  with  

regard to the jazz issue.  In my f i rst  bundle of  documents on 

page 100 to 101 and 102 to 103 and I  br ing th is up because of  25 
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the –  the –  there 's been an issue of  re l igion in th is –  in  th is 

case.  I 've been attacked for my –  for being Jewish.   I 've been 

quest ioned as to my –  my Jewishness.   I 've been –  I 've been –  

I  haven' t  been.. .   At  no point  d id anyone ask me that  i t  was an 

inherent requirement of  the job that  I  –  that  I  work on the 5 

Sabbath.   I  was direct ly at tacked by Warren Charles with 

regard to my re l igious bel iefs and I  just  wanted to point  out  the 

–  that  dur ing our d iscussions Ms Dean indicated that she was 

or had been a  member of  the NG Kerk.   I  don't  th ink th is is at 

a l l  surpr is ing.   I  th ink a lot  of  members of  the Media 24 are –  10 

are members of  the NG Kerk.   Now th is wouldn' t  be signi f icant 

in a normal society.   This is s igni f icant in terms of  our 

abnormal experience in  South Af r ica.  The NG Kerk unti l  qui te 

recent ly had a doctr ine that apartheid essent ia l ly was given 

divine sanct ion.   The.. .              15 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord. ..   - --   Sorry.  

 I  th ink the t ime has now come for me to object  on the 

grounds of  re levance.  You wi l l  note that  there are several 

pages here which contain an exposit ion of  the history of  the 

Nederduitse Gereformeerde Kerk  and i ts re lat ionship to the 20 

pol icy of  apartheid.   I  don' t  th ink we need the witness to 

expla in that  h istory to us.   We are able to read what is in the 

document ourselves and in e i ther event,  I  wi l l  be submit t ing at  

the end of  the case that  that  h istory is of  absolute ly no 

re levance to these proceedings.   -- -   Sorry M'Lord,  i f  I  may.  25 
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The re levance, I  –  I  am tasked with proving that  there was 

disparate t reatment.   This is a d iscr iminat ion case in terms of  

the Equal i ty Act .   The –  the –  these facts are very re levant and 

essent ia l ly I 'm saying that  the members of  the NG Kerk were 

given dif ferent  t reatment to –  to Jews at  Media 24.   I  would 5 

l ike to ask Shelagh Goodwin simi lar quest ions.    

 M'Lord,  I  draw your at tent ion to the fact  that that  is not a 

p leaded cause of  act ion in th is case.  ---   Sorry M'Lord,  the –  

i t 's  specif ical ly ment ioned that  the respondent d iscriminated 

against  me according to my re l igious bel iefs.   I  –  I 'm tasked 10 

with proving that  there was disparate t reatment.  I  real ise that 

the f i l ing sheet could have been f i led a lot  –  in  a lot  bet ter 

way.  I f  that  is the case I  would ask to amend my f i l ing sheet, 

the –  the facts of  the –  of  before. . .  

COURT:  No, you've. . .   Real ly,  you've,  I 'm going to a l low you 15 

to cont inue.  The quest ion of  re levance can be ra ised later.   I  

want to give you the widest  possib le opportuni ty to put  your 

case.  You're not  assisted by counsel.   ---   Right .  

 And but I  certa in ly,  as far as I  understand i t  your 

argument is that sofar you've said that  you had been 20 

quest ioned for your Jewishness.   You've been direct ly at tacked 

by Mr Warren Charles and you've sa id that  Ms Dean has said 

to you that  she is a member of  the NG Kerk and you say that 

the NG Kerk,  which –  has th is h istory.   Now we certa in ly don' t  

need you to read th is mater ia l  out .   ---   No.  25 
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 Is there anything further you want to say?  ---   Just  two 

points.   The –  that the World Al l iance of  Reformed Churches in 

1982 declared apartheid a heresy.   So actual ly i t  wi l l  be three 

points.  The second point  would be that  unt i l  th is day there are 

actual ly congregat ions of  the NG Kerk which have not yet  been 5 

accepted back into the internat ional reform movement and 

th ird ly that  the –  according to the –  there was an ( indist inct)  in 

the meet ing where there was –  where the heresy,  this whole 

th ing where they –  where a party was declared a heresy, 

apartheid is not  just  a heresy,  i t 's  –  i t 's  now considered, 10 

according to the NG Kerk as a status confessionis .   In other 

words the –  apartheid is not  something that  is up for 

d iscussion.   I t  af fects the confession on the cross,  i t  af fects 

the confession of  the –  of  the ent i re church as a –  as a whole.   

So if  Ms Dean was in fact  a member of  the NG Kerk she would 15 

be then, i f  she for instance persevered with the view that 

apartheid was given divine sanct ion and that .. .  

 Did she or d idn' t  she?  ---   Wel l ,  she appears to have 

very strange bel iefs with regard to the demographics of  

People 's Post.    20 

 Okay, anything further?  ---   H'm, I  would just  l ike to add 

that I 'm of  the same opinion.  I  agree that  –  that one could say 

a s imi lar –  the simi lar th ing with regard to Judaism, that I  th ink 

bel ief  in apartheid in any way, that  i t 's  given any divine 

sanct ion according to any holy book, whether i t 's  the Old 25 
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Testament or the New Testament, af fects one's moral  and 

ethical  standing in the community and there 's absolute ly no 

basis in any gospel,  whether i t 's  a Judaic gospel or a Christ ian 

gospel,  to mot ivate for racia l  prof i l ing or racia l  segregat ion or 

essent ia l ly def in ing other people in terms of  racia l  ident i ty.   I  5 

th ink th is is real ly the crux of  the matter.   The respondent has 

brought up my bel ief  in –  that  I 'm a phi lo -Semite, in other 

words I 'm self -def ined or other people def ine me as –  as 

Jewish.   This is –  th is bel ief  is with regard to my ethnici ty as a 

Jew.  I t 's  not a re l igious bel ief  or re l igious doctr ine.  I t 's  an 10 

at tempt to deal with my ethnic i ty as –  as an individual.   I  –  I  

don' t  –  I  don' t  subscribe to the notion that  people should be 

def ined according to race, according to some kind of  

legis lat ion.   I  –  I  bel ieve i t 's  something between oneself  and 

one's Maker.   So ethnic i ty is –  is  essent ia l ly something that 15 

needs to be var ied according to a phi losophical  paradigm and 

I 'm just  suggest ing that  there are phi losophical  paradigms 

avai lable to us in which we can deal with ethnic i ty and race –  

racia l ism in our society.   So the fact that  I  have these bel iefs, 

I 've actual ly been discr iminated against  by the respondent 20 

because the respondent has adhered essent ia l ly to a 

racia l ized view of  –  of  South Afr ica.   I 've made these 

al legat ions in my –  in  my f i l ing sheet.   The Media 24,  I 've –  

I 've yet  to hear any –  anyone actual ly apologise for th e –  the 

legis lat ion that  was ro l led out as a result  of  Naspers's pol ic ies.  25 



COURT 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

110 D R LEWIS 

 

05.11.2009/14:46-16:00/EdB / . . .  

Naspers and the Nat ional Party were one and the same 

organisat ion unt i l  qui te recent ly.  

 I 've given you an opportuni ty to deal with the issues that 

you said you haven' t  covered yes terday.   ---   Right ,  yes.  

 You have covered th is yesterday.   ---   Right .  5 

 Now is there anything else you want to add?  ---   H'm 

there was something.   I t 's  just  a –  i t 's  just  to respond to the 

respondent that  this c la im that  i t 's  inherent,  inherent to the j ob 

that  I  would essent ia l ly have to work on the Sabbath.   May I?  

 Well  I . . .   You know, yes just  go ahead.  ---   I  certa in ly 10 

don' t  bel ieve that i t  was an inherent requirement of  –  of  my 

job.   At  no t ime was I  actual ly to ld that  i t  was an inherent 

requirement and I,  when th is issue was –  arose, that  wasn' t  

the argument.   The argument was basical ly I 'm contradict ing 

myself  as a Jew.  Who am I  essentia l ly to quest ion authori ty 15 

and –  and you've actual ly gone and at tacked my Jewishness in 

var ious documents before  th is Court .   Now only today –  

yesterday you've changed your –  your tune.  So I  take 

except ion to the –  the manner in which –  in  which your 

argument has been ra ised and f ramed.  I f  you had actual ly 20 

come with the –  the inherent performance, inherent 

requirements of  duty to begin with I  might have accepted your 

arguments.   Thank you.  

 Mr Kahanovitz.  

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR KAHANOVITZ (CONTINUED) :25 
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Thank you, M'Lord.   Mr Lewis,  I  want to take you then back to 

an earl ier part  of  your test imony where you were ask ed by the 

Judge to ident ify the amendment which you made to the 

contract  which you said were missing and what you said was 

there was an addit ional paragraph which said that , “Anything 5 

that  they requested, I  would be obl iged to comply with that  

demand”.   Th is  c lause is missing.   Did I  get  i t  correct ly?  -- -   

H'm, i f  I  hear you correct ly the document which you are 

cla iming to be a contract  of  employment,  you haven' t  managed 

to show me a val id document so th is is a l l  hearsay and, you 10 

know, i t 's  –  i t 's  a hypothet ical . . .  

 Can you answer the quest ion?  ---   The document which I 

s igned had a –  a –  was amended. 

 No, no I 'm not asking you that .   I 'm asking you whether i t  

was your evidence yesterday.   ---   Yes.  15 

 That you to ld the Judge that when he, when the Judge 

asked you.. .   - --   Right .  

 . . .what was missing,  what was in the other contract. . .   - --   

Right ,  the other –  the other contract yes.  

 The one that  I  th ink you are suggest ing is be ing 20 

del iberately h idden.  ---   Right ,  the one which is h idden and 

would in any event have been inval id precisely because that 

c lause was included.  

 A clause that said that  whatever you were 

. . . ( intervent ion)  ---   I t  was an outrageous, i t  was an 25 
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outrageous demand.  You know, to put  that  in any contract  I  

th ink is evidence of  –  of  mala f ides .  

 Oh alr ight .   The job descript ion in your contract  says and 

th is is the one that we're not  h id ing,  that :  

“The employer appoints the employee to the post of  5 

layout sub.  However,  the part ies agreed that the job 

descript ion is not exclusive and that  wo rk of  a s imilar 

nature may be expected f rom the employee.”  

- --   Right .  

 Is that  the clause that  you're ta lk ing about maybe?  ---   10 

No, h 'm no.  

 No.  ---   There –  there is a problem with the 

interpretat ion of  that  c lause.  The respondent was of  the view 

tha t  “s imi lar work” meant anything,  including del ivery of  

newspapers,  wri t ings,  you know, submissions et  cetera,  et 15 

cetera. 

 Well ,  what the evidence wi l l  be is that  you were to ld at 

the interview that  i t  was a smal l  newspaper;   everybody was 

expected to p i tch  in to do extra tasks when i t  was requi red.   ---  

(W itness chuckles).  20 

 And apparent ly you didn' t  have a problem with i t .   - --   I  

have worked on smal l  newspapers where people do pi tch in.   I  

am an al l - rounder.   The –  the problem is, is that that  is not 

actual ly ref lected in the contract .  

 I  a lso want to put i t  to you something qui te obvious.   You 25 
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weren' t  h ired to decide how the People 's Post should be run.  

Do you agree with that?  ---   H'm, I  wasn' t  h ires as an editor, 

but  I  was given some kind of  posi t ion as an Arts and 

Enterta inment sub at  some point.   I  would presume that  i f  –  i f  

Arts and Enterta inment was under my purview I  would have 5 

some kind of  responsib i l i ty for the content or at  least  to 

engage the edi tor in such discussions.  

 But Mr Lewis,  whatever  you may th ink,  you weren' t  h ired 

to decide on what edi tor ia l  pol icy would be.  I t  appears to me 

that  you seem to bel ieve that  you most certa in ly had an 10 

important  ro le to p lay in that  regard,  but  you weren' t  h ired to 

do that .   ---   H'm i f ,  i f  your quest ion  is is i t  the edi tor 's 

prerogat ive or the prerogat ive of  the subeditor to decide what 

the content of  the newspaper is,  the –  i t  is  the edi tor 's ro le 

essent ia l ly,  the f inal  –  the buck stops at  the edi tor.   However,  I  15 

do have a r ight  as a c i t izen of  th is country to object  to 

d iscr iminatory or prejudice anywhere.   I f  –  i f  –  for instance 

there were actual ly a number of  art ic les which could be 

construed as ant i -Zionist  or ant i -Semit ic,  publ ished by the 

People 's Post.   I  haven' t  actual ly included those in my 20 

documents.   I  don' t  have a problem with people being ant i -

Zionist .   I 've got  a problem with people being ant i -Jewish. 

 What in heavens'  name has that  got  to do with what goes 

into the People 's Post?  ---   H'm, sorry what is your quest ion?  

 What has that got  to  do with the determinat ion of  the 25 
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edi tor ia l  pol icy of  the People 's Post?  ---   H'm, r ight .  

 And how much jazz or. . .   - --   I  –  r ight ,  I  don' t  –  I  don' t  

have to.. .   I  don' t  have –  there 's no inherent requirement for 

me to abide by an unethical  pract ice or yo u know, to 

d iscr iminate against  a part icular group of  people.   I  don' t  have 5 

to comply with –  wi th that  decis ion.  

 Now you accept this was a business venture.   The aim of  

the exercise is to make money.  That 's what Media 24 does. ---   

Right ,  but  money is not  my god. 

 I t  may not be your god, but  that 's how they stay in 10 

business.   They make money.  ---   Right .  

 And they make money by developing t i t les that  people 

want to buy.   Do you agree with me?  ---   No, th is was a f ree –  

a f reebie.   I t  was a knock -and-drop, and no-one actual ly 

bought the –  the People 's Post.   I t  was a –  i t  was a. . .   Right , 15 

r ight .    

 Yes,  but  that 's. . .   Alr ight .   Very good point .   How do they 

make money f rom the People 's Post?  ---   You te l l  me. 

 From advert is ing,  do you agree?  ---   H'm, I  bel ieve that 

the –  i t  is  a vehic le for advert is ing.   However,  the People 's 20 

Post actual ly has an editor ia l .   There 's an edi tor ial  page.  

There 's a lso up-edge(?) mater ia l .   There are news –  

newsworthy stor ies,  community news in –  in  the paper.   So i t 's 

–  i t 's  not  essent ia l ly just  an advert iser.  

 Yes but what are advert is ing,  what is . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   25 
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And the Cape Times was also, is a lso an advert iser.   I f  you 

want to look at  the history of  newspapers in South Af r ica the 

Argus was also an, you know, the. . .   What is journal ism 

essent ia l ly?  I  th ink that would be a bet ter quest ion.  

 I  just  have a simple point  to make.  To sel l  advert is ing 5 

you need readers?  ---   H'm sorry,  i f  you've asked –  i f  you ask 

me a quest ion on what is journal ism I  bel ieve I  could answer 

that  quest ion.  

 I 'm not asking you what is journal ism.  I 'm asking you 

how you run a newspaper that  makes a prof i t .   - --   Right  I 'm –  I  10 

didn' t  –  oh r ight .   I  d idn' t  apply –  I  didn' t  apply for a job at  an 

advert is ing agency.   I  am a journal ist.   I 'm not an advert iser.  

 So why would you take a job with th is prof i t  dr iven 

enterpr ise i f  you are so at  odds with their  fundamental 

phi losophy?  ---   I 've asked myself  the same quest ion 15 

considering their  lack of  submissions before the TRC.  The 

truth is that  I  sought employment.   I  was under the impression 

that  the organisat ion was a legi t imate media pract ice,  i t  was a 

legi t imate –  there were legi t imate journal ists.   As i t  turns out 

many of  the journal ists h ired by the People 's Post come f rom 20 

cram col leges that  are actual ly owned by the company.  

 Now you said that  you weren' t  aware that you would have 

to submit copy and you –  and the end result  you said that 

a l though duress had been placed on you to wri te copy,  your  

words were,  “ I t  wasn' t  a problem to me”.   ---   Right .  25 
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 Because eventual ly you kindly agreed.  ---   Yes,  I  –  I  was 

assured that  there was a press code –  there was actual ly a 

code of  conduct governing journal ists at  the People's Post.  

I t 's  actual ly part  of  my documents,  i tem 4 indexed to 

appl icant 's bundle of  documents:    5 

“Ethical  code for reporters,  photographers and graphic 

art ists of  Die Burger.”  

 And one of  the factors that  you said that  induced you to 

be so kind as to agree to wri te art ic les was the at t ract iveness 

of  Annel ien Dean.  ---   Under the overtures,  ja.  She –  she 10 

made quite –  qui te a number of  promises.  

 What exact ly are you suggest ing?  ---   H'm.. .  

 Are you suggest ing that  she was of fer ing you some sort  

of  romant ic or sexual ent icement to.. .?  ---   (W itness laughs).  

Gosh. 15 

 What are you suggest ing?  ---   No, I  –  I  just accepted i t  

as God's wi l l ,  that th is is what God intended, that  –  that  th is 

would –  that  th is was an –  these obstacles that  were in my 

mind were –  were actual ly. . .   You know, i t  was an opportuni ty 

to –  for growth in a –  in  a global company where there were –  20 

that I  was assured that  –  that  we were tackl ing t ransformat ion 

in the workplace.  

 Sorry,  you've gone of f  the point ent i re ly.   I  was asking 

you.. .   - --   H'm Annel ien Dean's at tract iveness or not should 

actual ly have –  is  of  no re levance.  25 
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 Well ,  you're the one that  ment ioned i t ,  which is  why I  

ra ised i t .   - --   Right .   H'm.. .  

 I  d idn' t  ra ise i t .   You ra ised i t  yesterday in your evidence.  

---   Ja,  but you've got to admit that  she is at t ract ive.  

 Doesn' t  the statements that you've made, have made, 5 

something te l l  us a lot  about the views that  you have about 

your col leagues and the basis on which you stereotype 

yoursel f .   - --   H'm I  –  I  don' t  see your point.  

 Ja you wouldn' t .   I  want you to p lease expla in what some 

of  the statements in your p leadings actual ly mean.  I f  you 10 

could go to the pleadings bundle,  page.. .   I t 's  page 21.  The 

document which you've headed:  Appl icant 's not ice of  cause.   

---   Sorry.   I 'm looking at  the not ice of  except ion.  

 No, page 21 of  the pleadings bund le.  ---   Oh th is is 21.  

 The document drafted by you.  ---   Alr ight .  15 

 The –  you not ice you introduce various th ings by ta lk ing 

about a pol i t ical  c l imate at Media 24 and you purport  to te l l  us 

a lot  about Media 24 in your evidence.  ---   H'm. 

 But the only component/part  of  Media 24 that  you have 

any direct  knowledge of  is the People 's Post?  ---   H'm, that 20 

wouldn' t  be correct .  

 I t  wouldn' t  be correct?  ---   No. 

 Well ,  what other parts of  Media 24 have you worked in?  

---   I 've worked for Metro -Burger.   I 've subbed copy for City 

Vis ion. 25 
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 Sorry,  was th is before you came...?  ---   Yes,  before the 

move to the –  Tokai.    

 Sorry,  is th is during your t ra in ing period that  you did this 

subbing or was th is a d if ferent  job that  you . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   

No, there was no t ra in ing.   I  d idn't  need to t ra in.   I  –  I 'm 5 

already –  have ample experience.  I  don' t  need to be retra ined 

to sub.  The only retra in ing that  occurred was with regard to 

retra in ing my ski l ls  for the –  the layout computer system.  

COURT:  Sorry.   You said that  you worked for City Burger,  is 

that  r ight?  ---   H'm, the –  the Metro-Burger.  10 

 Oh sorry Metro-Burger.   ---   Metro-Burger in Mitchel l ‟s  

Plain.  

 And the other one?  ---   Ci ty Vis ion I  subbed –  I  subbed 

copy for City Vis ion.  

 And just  to c lar i fy, that  was before. . .?  ---   Before –  this 15 

was before the move to the new premises at  –  at  Tokai.  

 No, the quest ion is just  is i t  before th is contract?  The 

one that  we're deal ing with now.  ---   No, no th is was the same 

contract .  

 Oh.        20 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Or what,  we cal l  i t  a t ra in ing period.   You 

can cal l  i t  what you want to.   What you're saying is dur ing what 

we cal l  the t ra in ing period on our systems you were given 

art ic les f rom other . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   Excuse me, the 

t ra in ing was a –  over a f ive days I  bel ieve.   One of  the reasons 25 
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I  wanted to cal l  Hanl ie Gouws was just  to c lar ify some of  the 

facts.   Ja.  

 Just  let 's work on a term that  I  can use that  you're happy 

with to refer to the period that  you were learning to use the 

systems before you actual ly moved.  ---   No, no you're ta lk ing 5 

about my –  the f i rst  month that  I  was there.  

 An induct ion.   Could we cal l  i t  your induct ion period?  ---   

You're welcome to.  

 Alr ight ,  dur ing your induct ion period you say you subbed 

for other publ icat ions.   ---   Correct .  10 

 And th is gave you knowledge about the way in which 

racism is perpetuated in these other publ icat ions as wel l?  ---   

Yes,  yes I  bel ieve I  would be party to such knowledge.  

 Right  so what do you want the Judge to f ind at the end of  

the case?  Must he f ind the whole Media 24 Group or must he 15 

make a f inding about People 's Post or which other?  ---   H'm.. .  

 Because as you know th is is a very large organisat ion.    

- --   Right  yes,  i t 's  a very large organisat ion.   I  bel ieve WP 

Koerante as a –  as a d ivis ion.   I  have no experience working in 

any other d ivis ions at  Media 24.   I  would posi t  that  a company 20 

of  that ,  of  the size of  Media 24 has probably qui te a range of  

pol i t ical  expression and that  the pol i t ical  expressions at  the 

divis ion were of  a tenacious and veheme nt nature,  last 

remnants of  –  of  the old order.  

 Right .   What does that  –  at  the bottom of  page 21 of  the 25 
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p leadings i t 's  the let ter C.  ---   H'm. 

You say:  

“Media 24 as a corporat ion has not compl ied with the 

basic requirements of  t ruth and reconci l ia t ion u nder the 

TRC Act and i ts status as a legal ent i ty in terms of  the 5 

Act is st i l l  pending.”  

What status as a legal ent i ty under the. . .?  ---   H'm. 

 You're referr ing to the Truth and Reconci l iat ion 

Commission legis lat ion?  ---   Yes the –  the problem with the 

mandate,  the mandate for the Commission I  th ink extended to 10 

individuals.   I t  wasn' t  ostensib ly a requirement of  the 

Commission to invest igate –  invest igate corporat ions.  

However,  there was a media commission at  which for example 

the Independent Group make –  made extensive submissions to 

the commission,  as did for instance Moegsien W il l iams and –  15 

on behalf  of  the Alternat ive Press.  

 Can I  just  te l l  you what my quest ion is?  ---   Sorry,  yes.  

 I  get  the impression f rom your evidence that  there 's some 

sort  of  legal process that  you are referr ing to that  happened at 

the TRC where i f  you went a long and apologised for what 20 

happened in the past  in some or other way, you got some sort 

of  p iece of  paper f rom the Truth And Reconci l ia t ion 

Commission which now said that  you are accept –  you are now 

–  you may now publ ish newspapers or you're an acceptable 

newspaper group.  Because I  am not aware of  any such 25 
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process.   ---   There was a media commission.   I t 's  referred to 

in my –  my bundle.  

 Yes but Mr Lewis,  there was no legal process at  the TRC 

besides there was amnesty.   You know what amnesty was?  

People who appl ied for amnesty for . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   Right , 5 

but  the –  the –  you see, the th ing is you're get t ing confused.  

The TRC wasn' t  just  about giving people amnesty or giving 

people opportuni ty to apologise.   I t  was also about gathering 

evidence so that  the evidence of  apartheid wouldn' t  d issipate 

and be destroyed.  There 's a huge body of  –  of  wri t ing with –  10 

on th is part icular problem of  the evidence.  So essent ia l ly,  you 

know, I 'm tasked with proving that  –  that  there was ever  such a 

th ing as an unjust  system in th is country because al l  the 

documents referr ing to apartheid have been destroyed.  The –  

there 's been, you know, at tempts to essent ia l ly pul l  the wool 15 

over people 's eyes.  

 I 'm trying to understand the basic point  which you appear 

to have made, is that  . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   I 've been –  I 've 

been to ld by Cobus van Bosch that  the view of  Media 24 is that 

the –  the papers are –  are publ ic record so the papers 20 

produced by the company essent ia l ly at  the South –  they're 

avai lable for the publ ic to read at  the South Af r ican Library.  

 But you've made some . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   However that 

doesn' t  –  that  doesn' t ,  you know, that  doesn' t  make the 

fa i lure. . .   I t 's a –  i t 's  a quest ion of  omission.   There's huge 25 
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omissions in the –  in  the evidence.  They're huge.. .  

 Sorry,  can I  just  stop you short?  ---   Right .   

COURT:  Yes, can I  just . . .?  I 'd  l ike you just  to answer the 

quest ion,  a lr ight?  And you must a l low Mr Kahanovi tz to f in ish 

his quest ion and then to answer i t  and please just  restra in 5 

yoursel f  to answer the quest ion.   I  think that 's real ly important .  

Thank you.           

MR KAHANOVITZ:  You seem to suggest that unl ike some 

other media organisat ions or individuals or companies,  I  don' t  

know what you're ta lk ing about,  but  that  some, that  Naspers 10 

did not  a “c lean bi l l  of  health” f rom the Truth and 

Reconci l ia t ion Commission and that  i f  you'd known that  you 

would never have appl ied for a job there.   Have I  got  that 

r ight?  ---   Right ,  you –  you're 100% correct .  

 But you couldn' t  get  a c lean bi l l  of  health f rom the Truth 15 

and Reconci l ia t ion Commission,  so what are you ta lk ing 

about?  ---   No I  –  I 'm ta lk ing about the omission.   I f  –  i f  Media 

24 had actual ly made a submission,  a –  an adequate and 

proper submission before the Commission I  th ink th is quest ion 

wouldn' t  have –  have ar isen.  I  wouldn' t  be here.   There would 20 

be I  th ink, you know, th is is a issue of  the negat ion of  

t ransformat ion.   They –  they direct ly opposed the Commission 

and they cont inue, they cont inue to oppose the –  the 

t ransformat ion in th is country.  

 But Mr Lewis,  before you appl ied for your job at  Media 25 
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24,  the TRC process was part  of  publ ic record.   The report 

which you now annexed to your bundle has been  publ ished.     

- --   I  –  I 've –  my problem was I  was famil iar with Ant j ie Krog's 

version of  events.  I  hadn' t  actual ly taken the t ime to go and 

wade through the TRC report .   I t 's  in I  th ink f ive volumes.  I t 's 5 

qui te –  qui te a lot  of  reading.   I  don' t  th ink  a lot  of  South 

Af r icans have actual ly bothered.  

 But you were a person.. .   - --   I t  would be an interest  –  i t 's  

an interest ing quest ion.   Sorry.  

 Yes,  but  you are a person who purports to have th is 10 

value system which would prevent you f rom going to 

. . . ( intervent ion)  ---   Yes i f ,  r ight  so. ..  

 Sorry,  could you l isten to my quest ion?  ---   Right .   

COURT:  Please.  ---   Sorry,  sorry.            

MR KAHANOVITZ:  You say you have a value system that 15 

would stop you f rom going to work for a racist  organisat ion.     

- --   Right .  

 Right .   So now you're applying for a job at  an 

organisat ion which you know is  part  of  the Naspers Group, 

r ight?  ---   Yes.  20 

 How much research do you actual ly need to go and do, 

having been a journal ist  yoursel f  for some years,  to know what 

the history of  Naspers was?  You didn' t  need to go and read 

anything to know that .   ---   H'm.. .   I t  –  d id I  bother to research 

the history of  the company before I  jo ined i t?  H'm.. .   Look i t  –  25 
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i t  was, I  th ink everyone knew that there –  that there were 

these l inks.   I  –  I  was under the impression,  because of  the 

prospectus of  their  company, that  there were some kind of  

eth ical  management.   I t 's  d irect ly referred to in the prospectus.    

 Mr Lewis,  I 'm going argue at  the end of  the case that  th is 5 

version that  you 've invented about the re lat ionship between 

what happened or d idn' t  happen at  the TRC and your decis ion 

to jo in Media 24,  is a concoct ion.   I t 's  something you've 

invented for purposes of  th is case.  I t  just makes no sense.  ---  

I t 's  –  i t 's –  you're  ent i t led to your opin ion.   I  –  I  hold. . .   I  10 

cont inue to –  to hold that  bel ief  that –  that had I  known, had I 

–  had I  read the TRC report ,  in  part icular the media 

commission and the f indings made by Archbishop Tutu,  I  –  I  

don' t  bel ieve I  would have sought employm ent.   So ja.   I t 's  –  

i t 's  in h indsight .  15 

 Oh.  Then on many occasions you te l l  us about 

something cal led the Half -hol iday Act of  1905 and for example 

one example of  that  is that at  page 22 you say,  th is next  to the 

let ter F:  

“Suff ice to say that  the appl ica nt was forced to enter into 20 

a prejudic ia l  agreement.  The respondent acted in bad 

fa i th and the condit ions under which the Half -hol iday Act 

of  1905 was implemented no longer exist . ”  

- --   H'm that. . . ,  r ight .  

 Well  how did you f ind th is p iece of  legis lat ion?   What has 25 
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i t  got  to do with this case?  ---   Wel l  th is is the –  the –  i t 's  just 

an indicat ion of  the status quo that  I  –  the country that I  grew 

up no longer exists.   I  mean that would be correct .   The 

problem is,  is that  i t 's  st i l l  on the statute.   I t 's  the f i rst  t ime 

that the Jewish Sabbath was actual ly recognised under the 5 

statute.  

 Who to ld you that?  ---   I  d id some research at  the,  h 'm, 

is i t  the Git l in  Library or the Kaplan Library,  one of  the 

l ibrar ies.        

 Just  can I br ief ly show you the –  what  is in that Act?  ---   10 

Right.  

 I t 's  at  page 58 of  your bundle.   ---   Yes. 

 Who to ld you i t 's  st i l l  on the statute books?  Was that 

something that  you.. .?  ---   H'm.. .   That 's in terms of  legal 

precedent.  15 

 Oh I see.  ---   I  don' t  th ink there 's been any law  

contradict ing the Half -hol iday Act.  

 I  see.  Wel l ,  just  look what i t  says there:  

“Be i t  enacted by the governor of  the colony of  the Cape 

of  Good Hope.”  20 

---   Right .  

 Do you remember what happened in 1910 in South 

Af r ica?  ---   H'm...  

 Did you read about that  at  universi ty?  ---   Would,  that 

would have been the Union or. . .  25 
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 Yes.   So why is the –  why is 1905 Cape legis lat ion st i l l  

on our statute books?  ---   H'm, for the same reason we've got, 

some laws are going,  in terms of  precedent going back to 

Roman-Dutch,  the Dutch occupat ion.  

 Oh I  see, a lr ight .   Now the Act says i t 's  to secure a hal f -5 

hol iday for shop assistants.   ---   Precisely.  

 Yes.    What in heavens'  name has that  got to do with 

your case?  ---   There 's a c lause.. .   I ' l l  f ind i t .   On page 59:  

“Kosher meat,  butchers exempt.  

9. Butchers who deal in kosher meat and who sat isfy 10 

the local  authori t ies that  they keep their  shops bona 

f ide  c losed f rom sunset on Fr iday to sunset on 

Saturday and who are duly registered by such local 

authori t ies,  shal l  be exempt f rom the provis ions of  

th is Act , as long as their  shops are closed as 15 

aforesaid and their  employees are not  employed on 

that  day.”   

 And what is the re lat ionship between that  and the work 

that  journal ists do at  People 's Post?  ---   H'm, I  was asked to 

work on a Saturday morning.   I  grew up in the context  in which 20 

Jewish shopkeepers for some reason kept their  shops open on 

Saturday morning,  but  c losed them on Saturday af ternoon.  So 

i t 's  a –  i t 's  an interest ing,  you know, the interpretat ion of  the 

Act,  the pract ice, you know, how –  how the law has actual ly 

created a certa in pract ice or a certa in e lement in –  in  South 25 
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Af r ica.   You know i t 's  –  i t 's  –  I  just  th ink i t 's  an interest ing 

benchmark.   I 'm not contest ing whether or not,  you know, i t 's  

lawful  or not  for me to be working on a Saturday morning.  

 Right ,  I  want to talk about your interview.  As I  –  I  th ink 

we've already been here.   You don' t  d ispute that  you 5 

ment ioned your re l igious status at the interview and in fact 

what you to ld the Judge yesterday wa s that  somehow or other 

the organisat ion should have real ised that  you were Jewish.   

That –  that  was your evidence.  ---   I t 's  a wel l -known fact  that  I  

am a Jew.   10 

Now i f  my cl ients test i fy that  they would –  one of  the 

reasons they wouldn' t  ask you about your re l igion at  an 

interview is because quite f rankly i t 's  i r re levant to the decis ion 

that  they make about whether or not  somebody should be 

employed, do you have a problem with that?  ---   H'm I  –  I  15 

would say that  ignorance is no defence.  

Oh I  see, a lr igh t .  Do you want us to have a form that 

people f i l l  in  when they apply for their  jobs with a question that 

says:   Are you Jewish?  - --   No:  Do you require any specia l 

leeway?  Or whatever.  20 

Alr ight .   ---   “Do you need any assistance.. .  –   What are 

your preferences?”  

People with universi ty degrees can' t  br ing that up 

themselves?  ---   H'm i t 's  –  i t 's  actual ly a topic,  the i tem, the 

missing page:  Human Resources gets re l igion/re l igious 25 
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d iversi ty in the workplace.  I t 's  just  a factor of  –  of  

global isat ion, so as we become more diverse these issues and 

you know, i t 's  –  you can' t  actual ly say anymore –  the Human 

Resources person could be Taiwanese or f rom DRC.  I 've got  

no way of  knowing, you know, reasonable accommodat ion on 5 

my views in a global company to –  to accept that  people know 

what t radi t ions and pract ices, what –  what is considered 

normal for a Jew in South Af r ica.  

Are you f in ished?  ---   Right .   

Thank you.  You were hired to assist  in the launch of  an 10 

extended version of  People 's Post,  involving an extr a f ive 

geographical  regions.   I  don' t  know if  you know that ,  but  that 's 

why you were hired.   Do you wish to comment?  ---   There 

wasn' t . . .   Right ,  r ight  that  wasn' t  the basis of  my appointment.  

I t  became apparent af ter I  was appointed.  15 

Well ,  they needed extra staf f  because they were 

expanding.  ---   Right ,  yes.  

You spent your f i rst  month in Cape Town and Bel lvi l le  in 

an induct ion process.   ---   Right .  

Correct?  ---   Right .  20 

The f i rst  edi t ion of  People 's Post was scheduled for 23 

May, correct?  ---   I  bel ieve so.  Right .  

Now I  want to deal with your c la im.  Go into the 

pleadings f i le  page 4,  paragraph 4.4.1.   ---   Right .  

And you say your r ight  to cul tural  l i fe  et cetera,  et  cetera 25 
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were denied and then:  

“ . . . in  that  he was forced to work seven -day weeks.”  

- --   Yes,  yes.  

 Now you've already conceded in the evidence which 

you've given that. . .   Wait,  before I  go there,  th is document,  d id 5 

your at torney show i t  to you before i t  was given to the 

respondent?  ---   Not real ly,  not . . .  

 Did he ask you whether you agree wi th what is in th is 

document and whether the contents are t rue?  ---   H'm, I 'm 

quite happy with the contents of  the document as –  as i t  10 

stands.  I  would.. .  

 Alr ight ,  so as you look at  i t  now, there 's nothing in there 

that 's fa lse?  ---   H'm, i f  you want to ta lk about 100% accurate, 

h 'm...   I  wi l l  –  I  wi l l  probably change 4.4.3.1.   I t 's  not  ent i re ly 

accurate.  15 

 Right ,  I ' l l  get  there in a minute but  so but  do you agree 

with me, your at torney wasn' t  there, so the only way he could 

have found out that  Sedrick Tal jaard harassed you by making 

an appointment with you at  four o 'c lock in the morning was 

because you to ld h im that?  ---   ( Indist inct) .   No that  was the –  20 

the ef fect  of  Sedrick 's bul ly –  bul lyboy tact ics.   He basical ly 

bul ldozed me into waking up at  four o ' c lock in the morning and 

being responsib le for the dispatch at  4:00 a.m.  

 Please answer the quest ion.   The –  I 'm not interested in 

what the ef fect  of  Sedrick Tal jaard 's conduct was.  I 'm 25 
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in terested in where your at torney got th is informat ion f rom and 

common sense wi l l  te l l  us that  he could only have got i t  f rom 

you.  ---   Right .   He got i t ,  r ight ,  he –  he got . . .   No he got i t  out  

of  my, h 'm, he requested a –  that  I  wr i te a document,  my 

experience of  d iscr iminat ion at  Media 24.  5 

 Alr ight .   ---   I t  is  part  of  the. . .   I t 's  in my bundle of  

documents.  

 So let 's,  so you gave him some wri t ten instruct ions,  he 

put i t  in to a document and you –  th is document started the bal l  

ro l l ing and at no stage since th is was f i led at  court  have you 10 

f i led any other p iece of  paper which was said that what is  

contained in here is inaccurate?  ---   H'm no. 

 Alr ight ,  so let 's look at  the accuracy of  i t .   I  go back to 

what 's at  4.4.1.   You cla im that  you were forced to work a 

seven-day week.  ---   Yes.  15 

 Well ,  i t  fo l lows f rom what is in 4 .1 that  that  is something 

that  you experienced during your employment.   The period 

didn' t ,  i t  doesn' t  –  the statement doesn' t  say that:   On one 

occasion or two occasions I was forced.  I t  says that  that  was 

your work regime.  This is what the document says .   ---   Right 20 

yes.  

 But you've already pointed out yesterday . . . ( intervent ion)  

---   Oh r ight .   I  was –  I  was beholden to the company 24/7.  

 No, no.   ---   According to the clause that  –  that .. .  

 No.  ---   Right .  25 
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 You don' t  get  out  of  i t  that  easi ly.   The J udge asked you 

yesterday.   He asked you when did you end up work ing the 

seven-day week and your case now is that  you ended up 

“working a seven -day week in the last  two weeks that  I  was 

there”.   ---   Right ,  you're spl i t t ing hairs.  5 

 No i t 's  not about spl i t t i ng hairs,  i t 's  about what 's t rue and 

what 's fa lse.  ---   The –  no the fact  –  the fact of  the matter is, 

is  that  the contract  I  s igned ref lected essent ia l ly whatever the 

company te l ls me to do I  should do.   I  was beholden to the 

company 24/7.  10 

 But Mr Lewis,  th is contract  which you or I  don' t  know, 

whichever version you wish to ta lk about,  whichever way you 

look at i t ,  says that  you work a 40 -hour week and that  is not .. .   

- --   Wel l  th is is the problem.  The contract , you don' t  have a 

val id contract  in f ront  o f  you. 15 

 Alr ight ,  okay f ine.   And you also seem to know about the 

Basic Condit ions of  Employment Act  which also st ipulates what 

the maximum number of  working hours are in any week.  ---  

But to te l l  you the t ruth,  I  actual ly never saw such a –  the 

poster at  –  at  WP Koerante.   20 

Alr ight  f ine.   ---   I  don' t  bel ieve the –  the manager was 

even aware that the basic condit ions existed.  

Then 4 –  page 5,  4.4.3.1 your c la im is:  

“Sedrick Tal jaard, manager for WP Koerante/Newspapers 

harassed appl icant by making an appointment with 25 
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“appl icant at  4:00 a.m. in the morning.”  

- --   Right .  

 Now the f i rst  part  of  that  which is fa lse is that  Mr 

Tal jaard never made any appointment.   ---   Sorry can I  –  can I 

point  you to a document in my bundle of  documents?  “Page 5 

f rom appl icant 's  diary”,  page 26.  

 Yes.   ---   I t  says here:   4:00 a.m. d ispatch.  

 Yes,  but you were asked to expla in.  ---   The, r ight  the 

newspapers were del ivered to Retreat  at  5:00 a.m.  I  was the –  

appointed as product ion . . . ( intervention)  10 

 You see, what does “make an  appointment”. . .?  Mr 

Tal jaard is the publ isher of  –  he 's the –  he is in fact the man in 

charge of  WP Koerante.   ---   Right .  

 What does the expression “made an appointment with 

me” mean?  ---   H'm, to be more accurate,  the –  that  c lause in 15 

my f i l ing sheet should ref lect  that the –  Tal jaard made an 

appointment with the dispatch and that  because of  the chain of  

command because of  the product ion, that  would mean that  the 

product ion was responsib le. . . ,  I  was the responsib le person at 

that  point .   The person get t ing up at  4:00,  4:00 a.m. would 20 

have been –  I  would have been responsib le for,  in some way.. .  

 May I  have a quick look in th is bundle of  mine?  Here.  

Yesterday you were asked to expla in where you'd got  to th is 

t ime of  4:00 a.m. and what th is was al l  abou t and what you did 

was you directed us to page 19 of  the respondent 's bundle.   ---  25 
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Right .   I t  says there 5:30 I th ink.  

 Well  before we get to the t ime.. .   - --   Right .  

 Is th is Mr Tal jaard making an appointment with you?  

Never mind about the t ime.  ---   Cal l  i t  what you want.   He –  he 

could have signed me up for the Media 24 rugby team on a 5 

Saturday morning.  I t 's  just a issue of  term –  terminology.  

 Don' t  you want –  do you want to maybe read the emai l?   

---   Let 's read i t .   H'm.. .   Sorry.  

“Dear col league .   You are hereby invi ted to jo in us in the 

exci tement when we launch the new People 's Post edi t ion 10 

in  the Southern Suburbs.”  

- --   Oh ja,  yes.   Right .  

“On Tuesday morning,  23 May, f rom 6:00 to 8:00 we are 

going to d ish out the routes(?) of  the new publ icat ion 

together with a giveaway f r idge magnet to motor ists and 15 

keychain at  intersect ions.. . ”  

- --   Yes.   

“ . . . in  the Southern Suburbs.   Those of  you that  are going 

to jo in us wi l l  each receive a red People 's Post „Tel l ing i t  

as i t  is ‟  T -shir t  and peak cap.”  20 

---   Right .   Wonderfu l .  

“We need as many hands as possible for the promot ion 

and would l ike to see al l  of  you there.   We wi l l  f in ish at 

08:00 so you wi l l  be back at  the of f ice in t ime.  As soon 

as we have al l  the names of  the volunteers we wi l l  do the 25 
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“planning regarding who, what and where.”  

- --   (W itness laughs).  

“Pool cars wi l l  be made avai lable for those teams coming 

f rom Bel lvi l le . ”   

Et  cetera,  et  cetera.   5 

“You are welcome to br ing along f r iends or family who 

would l ike to part ic ipate.”   

- --   Yes,  hear i t .  

“Everybody wi l l  receive the necessary promot ional 

c loth ing.”  10 

So.. .   - --   Alr ight ,  so –  so r ight .  

 I  th ink the document speaks for i tsel f ,  Mr Lewis.   - --   No 

i t  doesn' t  because i t 's  –  i t 's  –  how do you def ine “ invi tat ion”?   

 What is a volunteer,  for a start?  ---   H'm, what is a 

bul ly? 15 

COURT:  Answer the quest ion.  ---   Str ict ly speaking,  h 'm, Mr 

Tal jaard 's version of  events is that i t  was by invi tat ion and 

voluntary.   The fact  of  the matter is,  is  that  Mr Tal jaard is a 

bul ly and that  he int imidated me an d int imidated his staf f  and 

then when I  d idn' t  arr ive for the second session he f i red me.    20 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  So the real  reason that  you lost  your job is 

in fact  that  you didn' t  volunteer for the second launch?  That 's 

the real  reason?  ---   H'm that 's one of  the many reasons that  I  

can, I  can imagine.  

 Oh I  see.  Alr ight .   Now you can look at  what happened in 25 
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a number of  d if ferent  ways,  but  none of  them come even close 

to sustain ing the t ruth of  what you cla imed in your statement of  

c la im.  First ly,  I  put  i t  to you Mr Tal jaard didn' t  make an 

“appointment with the appl icant” at  any t ime.  ---   H'm...   I t 's  a 

–  i t 's  a problem of  the –  the terms.  Are you saying that  he 5 

made an invi tat ion,  he volunteered me?  

 I t 's  not  with you.  I t  is  a memo that  went out  to t he ent i re 

staf f .   - --   Right  he. . .  

 I f  you are –  do you know –  do you understand what the 

word “harass” –  what does “harass” mean?  ---   Yes.  10 

Harassment, h 'm when someone is vict imised or –  or 

int imidated and Mr Tal jaard was an except ional ly aggressive 

person. 

 So he, on your thesis he must be. . . ,  th is is a process 

where in terms of  which he sought to harass the ent i re staf f?   15 

---   Yes i f  you don' t  do,  i f  you don't  volunteer your t ime, f i re.  

Fire the individual,  yes and I 'm sure everyone else at –  at . . . ,  

huh, you know.  

 Okay so i t  wasn' t  d irected at  David Lewis speci f ical ly or 

individual ly.   There 's no emai l  or te lephone cal l  to David  20 

Lewis,  saying:   David Lewis,  you must meet with me.  ---   No 

you're wrong.  There 's –  I  was put on a team with Annel ien 

Dean.  I t 's  on the second page.  

 On the second page of  what?  ---   H'm, th is. . .  

 Page 21?  ---   Sorry.  25 
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“Dear col leagues.  Thank you very much for 

volunteering.”  

That one?  ---   No hang on.  Let 's have a look.  Let 's have a 

look.   I  just  need to f ind i t .   App l icant. . .  

 Page.. .   - --   Sorry,  I  was going to f ind the. . .  5 

 I  th ink what you're looking for is at page 21 of  the 

respondent 's bundle.   ---   ( Indist inct  –  speaking in an 

undertone).   There's a. . .   25.  

 So can I maybe help you?  What are you looking for?  ---   

Sorry i t 's ,  r ight  on page 25.  I t  says there:   V11.. .7(?).   Should 10 

be: 

“Annel ien,  Fat ima(?),  Vat iswa, David and Nina.  Pr ince 

George Drive and Fi f th Avenue.  16:30 Retreat . ”  

So what is the point  you're making?  ---   So 4:30.   So th is 

is th is is. . .   What  is 16:30?  4:30? 15 

Yes.  ---   That 's 4:30 in the –  in the morning in Retreat.  

No, 16:30 is not  4:30 in the morning,  i t 's  4:30 in the 

af ternoon.  ---   Oh sorry.  

Alr ight  wel l ,  le t 's move on to the next  point .   The word 

“harassment” means something that happen s to you 20 

repeatedly.   Do you agree with me?  Repeated badgering,  

repeated pester ing.   I t 's  not  something that  happens once.  ---   

Right .  

And at  least  here you don' t  suggest that  the reason why 

you were required,  together with the rest  of  the staf f  or asked  25 
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together with the rest  of  the staf f ,  to part ic ipate had anything 

to do with d iscr iminat ion.   ---   H'm.. .   The reason I  was asked 

to part ic ipate,  I 'm –  I 'm trying –  I  was t ry ing to prove the 

disparate t reatment which occurred,  the. ..   You know, i t 's  sort 

of  a,  h 'm.. .   Essent ia l ly the company took –  took my t ime carte 5 

b lanche, that. . .  

Yes but I  haven' t  heard you.. .   I  haven' t  heard you 

suggest that  members of  the Jewish fa i th for instance, only 

members of  the Jewish fa i th were required to be there at  four 

o 'c lock in the morning.   ---   Right ,  r ight .   So the th ing is 10 

essent ia l ly I 'm trying to show the Court  that  the –  when i t  came 

to the Fr iday night  issue the exact  same modus existed that 

essent ia l ly my t ime on a Fr iday night  was volunteered by the 

company.  I t  –  i t  was just  to take.   There was absolute ly no 

say-so on –  on managing my own t ime.  15 

Mr Lewis. . .   - --   So that 's essentia l ly what I 've been 

trying to prove.  

I 'm going to argue at  the end of  the case that  whether or 

not  asking employees to volunteer or no t  volunteer or even 

forcing them to come and hand out newspapers at  four or f ive 20 

or s ix o 'c lock in the morning is not  a c la im that 's got  anything 

to do with the Employment Equity Act .   ---   Yes i f  –  i f  –  i f  i t ,  

you see i f  i t  cont inues as –  as a modus and i t  starts to af fect 

issues l ike re l igious issues and –  and so on, then i t  –  i t  

def in i te ly is covered by the –  the Act .   25 
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But i t  d idn' t . . .   - --  I t 's a modus, i t 's a modus and –  and 

the issue is the –  my Friday night .  

What has that got to do with handing out  newspapers in 

the morning?  -- -   H'm r ight ,  i f  –  i f  you volunteer your 

employees'  t ime without even bothering to consult  them and if  5 

you int imidate them into essent ial ly complying with your 

command, your,  you know, your –  basical ly i t 's  l ike a d irect 

order and Sedrick actual ly,  he said no th is is the –  th is is l ike  

the South Af r ican Defence Force.  We must –  th is is how he 

wants to run the –  run everyth ing.   So if  you do that  and then 10 

when i t  comes to a sort  of  when there 's crunch sort  of  issues 

l ike my observance of  the Sabbath versus your observance of  

the Sabbath and now you cont inue to force compl iance and 

obedience and slavishness,  you're bound to get  into t rouble.  

 Alr ight  so th is was the th in edge of  the wedge is what 15 

you're saying?  ---   Right .  

I f  le t  –  i f  a l lowed to cont inue i t  would no doubt lead to 

d iscr iminat ion?  ---  Indeed i t  d id.  

 I t  d id?  ---   Ja i t . . .  

Oh I  see, a lr ight .  And what pol icy,  what employment 20 

pol icy do you say was appl icable here?  ---   Sorry? 

 Employment pol icy.   ---   In terms of  the Act? 

Is there a pol icy. . .   - --   In terms.. .  

 Well ,  is  there a pol icy regarding dis tr ibut ing newspapers 

early in the morning,  that  you're aware of?  ---   H'm...   Today? 25 
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No at  the t ime.  ---   Or then. 

Was there some –  was there a policy that  dealt ,  a WP 

Koerante pol icy about what happens.. .   - --   There was a,  r ight  

there was a h 'm.. .   Sedrick –  Sedrick,  okay the t ruth is Sedrick 

Tal jaard issued a direct ive.   He directed members of  the 5 

organisat ion to d istr ibute newspapers.   I  can accept i t  as a 

teambui ld ing exercise,  but  to cont inue week af ter week, is that 

is the modus of  the organisat ion and to essent ia l ly resul t  in a 

c lash with my Sabbath.  

Yes wel l ,  but  the facts are that  on one occasion you 10 

part ic ipated, the tota l  of  one.  ---   H'm r ight  and he volunteered 

my t ime on a second occasion.. .  

Yes and you didn' t  go.   -- -    . . .on the same day that  I  was 

f i red. 

And you didn' t  go so you did i t  once.  ---   Right  and I –  15 

and that 's why I 'm here.  

Alr ight .    

COURT:  Mr Kahanovitz,  would th is be an appropriate mom ent 

to take a short  adjournment?       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Thank you, M'Lord.  20 

COURT ADJOURNS  (at 16:00)       

COURT RESUMES (at 14:43) 

DAVID ROBERT LEWIS:  (s.u.o.)  

COURT:  Mr Kahanovitz.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord.  25 
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CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR KAHANOVITZ (CONTINUED) :  

Mr Lewis,  we were on page 5 of  the pleadings.   We've dealt  

wi th the 4:00 a.m. in the morning appointment a l legat ion.   The 

next  a l legat ion is:  

“Requir ing appl icant to d istr ibute newspapers every 5 

Tuesday morning f rom 5:00 a.m. to 7:30 a.m.”  

And you've already conceded that  that  statement is an 

exaggerat ion.   ---   H'm sorry,  i f  I  may.  I  had no way of  

knowing.  I t 's  –  i t 's  hypothet ical .   We're both assuming that  i f  I  

hadn' t  been f i red,  that  the course of  act ion would have 10 

stopped.  So i t 's  a b i t ,  i t 's  a conjec ture. 

 Well  I  can, I  can put i t  to you.. .  I t 's  not  a conjecture,  Mr 

Lewis.   I  can put i t  to you that  Mr Taljaard or Annel ien Dean or 

anyone else for that  matter who –  i f  they need to come and 

test i fy in th is case they wi l l  point  out  that the distr ibut ion o f  15 

newspapers is not  an edi tor ia l  or journal ist ic funct ion.   ---   

Yes.  

They have people who are,  I  don' t  know what the Engl ish 

word is but  in Af r ikaans they cal l  them “ roete opsieners” .   - --   

Yes.   H'm but the same t ime you –  you seem or appear to 20 

argue that  an inherent –  there was an inherent requirement of  

the job to do al l  manner of  th ings.   So i t 's  –  I  don' t  bel ieve i t 's 

an exaggerat ion.  

Mr Lewis,  you are qui te c lear ly c lutching at  straws.  You 

know that  i t  was an except ional event where everybody was 25 
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asked to part ic ipate in the launch.  ---   Right .  

And you know that  journal ists and subeditors are not , 

outside of  such except ional c ircumstances would never be 

involved in d istr ibut ing  newspapers.  ---   Right  but  at  the same 

–  same token I  –  I  don't  bel ieve i t 's  an inherent requirement of  5 

the job of  a sub to submit art ic les for publ icat ion.  

But i t  is  r id iculous to suggest that  at  some stage in the 

future, i f  you had stayed on, that  you would be required to on a 

weekly basis be involved in the distr ibut ion of  newspapers.   ---  

Right ,  I  –  I  yes I  –  I  bel ieve Mr Tal jaard was t rying to point  out, 10 

h 'm, sort  of  a –  a fa i t  accompl i .   He was –  he was t ry ing to  

essent ia l ly prove that :   Ja no,  at  –  at Media 24,  you know, we' l l  

–  we do everyth ing here.   He was –  i t  was h is sort  of  v iew that  

–  that  prevai led.   However,  I  had no way of  knowing at  the t ime 

whether the course of  act ion would have cont inued.  I t 's 15 

hearsay.  

Then: 

“ . . .harass the applicant by requir ing the appl icant to work 

14-hour days.”  

Your evidence yesterday when you were asked about th is by 20 

the Judge, I  th ink you could recall  one day on which you 

cla imed that  you worked 14 hours.   ---   H'm, h 'm Fridays as –  

would have –  Fr idays and Mondays would have .. .  

 No, you were asked.. .   We know now, we know you only 

ever worked on two edit ions of  the People 's Post.   ---   Right  25 
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and –  and then those two edit ions the –  the Fr iday was an 

issue and the Monday.  

 Yes but you were asked to te l l  us specif ical ly about 

actual  occasions.   ---   Yes.  

 On which you were required to wo rk a 14-hour day.   ---   5 

What –  what d id I  say?  

 And my recol lect ion was that  you were able to mention 

one day.   ---   H'm that 's –  that 's incorrect .   I t  –  the –  the 

Monday was –  was a 14-hour day and the Fr iday was a 14 -hour 

day.  10 

 So you worked twice?  ---   Two days out of ,  two.. .  

 There 're two occasions on which you say you worked 14 

hours?  ---   No, no two days. . . ,  that would have been four days 

in that  –  the –  those two problemat ic product ion cycles.  

 Yes and th is const i tutes,  you already admit ted that  th is 15 

was a highly except ional per iod.   ---   H'm.. .  

 But i t 's  st i l l  harassment.   ---   I t 's  harassment i f  there're 

no steps to rect i fy.   There were –  there were no steps made by 

the company to rect i fy.   This is the . . . ( intervent ion)  

 What must they rect i fy?  ---   To rect i fy the –  the problem 20 

–  problem areas in the product ion.   I  was –  I  was at tempt ing to 

del iver a report  to the ef fect .   

 Are you ta lk ing about the speed of  the data l ine?  

Because that  was one of  the reasons.. .   - --   Wel l  th is,  th is a lso 

had a problem with the. . . ,  wi th the lateness of  the –  the whole 25 
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product ion process.   There was a lateness with the. . . ,  wi th the 

edi tor ia l  process.  

 Then “By stat ing”,  4.4.3.3:  

“By stat ing that in the event that  the appl icant is 

dissat isf ied with working in terms o f  the above work 5 

parameters,  he can at tend the terminus and go home.”  

- --   Ja,  ja.  

 So Mr Tal jaard actual ly said to you i f  you're unhappy 

about coming in. . .   - --   Ja.  

 . . .at four o 'c lock in the morning and distr ibut ing 10 

newspapers every Tuesday f rom 5:00 a.m. to 7:30 a.m. and if  

you're unhappy about working 14 hours a day. . .   - --   Ja.  

 Then you can at tend the terminus and go home.  ---   Ja.  

Hy' t  v i r  my gesê ek kan die terminus  bywoon of  by die hel  toe 

gaan. 15 

 When did you have th is d iscussion with Mr Tal jaar d?  ---   

H'm, I  was cal led into h is of f ice at WP Koerante in Bel lvi l le .  

 Yes but when?  ---   The date,  i t 's an interest ing one.  

H'm, I  d idn' t  take note in my diary so i t  was one of  the –  i t  

would have been in response to the correspondence and the 20 

issue, contractual issues which I  ra ised.  So i t  would have 

been in the f i rst  or second week.  

 What correspondence are you ta lk ing about?  ---   With 

regard to my submission of  stor ies in terms of  the contract 

under duress.  25 
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 Ei ther your f i rst  or second week of  wor king for. . .?  ---   

Yes,  r ight .  

 But your version then is completely implausib le because 

the events that you describe . . .   - --   I  just  want to make sure of  

the dates. . .  5 

The having to work at  4:00 a.m. in the morning and the 

distr ibut ion of  newspapers only occurred af ter th is meet ing.     

- --   Yes wel l  th is,  th is was in –  these events occurred in terms 

of  that  contract which Sedrick bul l ied me into s igning.  

But even you must concede that your version then 10 

doesn' t  make any sense.  ---   No, i t 's  just  a problem o f  the 

summation,  the summary of  –  of  events.   I t 's  a l l  contracted into 

one document.   The –  the person who drew up th is document 

d idn' t  real ly make any at tempt to extr icate the exact  t ime.  

There 's no chronology in the f i l ing document.  15 

Well  i t 's  not  h igh legalese th is,  i t 's  by stat ing that  in the 

event.   ---   Right .  

I t 's  s imply he's going on.. .   - --   That –  that  was the 

direct ive that ,  r ight .  

What you to ld h im Mr Tal jaard said.  ---   Right ,  yes.   Yes 20 

he said i f  –  i f  I  don' t  operate with –  in  terms of  the parameters 

of  the contract  which basical ly says I  can –  I  must comply with 

any of  h is orders,  I  can go to the terminus or I  can go to hel l .  

Now i t 's  go to hel l .   - --   I  –  I  didn' t  put  that  in the 

document.   I t 's  –  I  f ind the. ..  25 
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Why not?  ---   H'm, i t 's  something I d idn' t  actual ly share 

with Dale Stevens.   

Why would you not share i t  wi th your at torney?  ---   I  –  I  

don' t  know Dale Stevens very wel l .  

Is there some sensit ivi ty about te l l ing somebody else that 5 

somebody to ld you to go to hel l?  ---   H'm.. .  

Would you be embarrassed to te l l  Mr Dale Stevens?  ---  

No, to te l l  you the t ruth I 'm af ra id I  might just  end up in hel l  

because I worked on Saturday morning.  

Well  Mr Tal jaard denies that  he to ld you anything along 10 

the l ines of  you having to at tend the terminus.   He says i t 's  not 

an expression that  he uses.   I t 's  a.. .   - --   The impl icat ion is 

that  I  can fa l l  in  l ine with a l l  the other Af r icans in the 

newsroom.  They sjambokked black employees at  the SABC 

unt i l  19 –  1994 if . . .   Instead of  a d iscip l inary you could a ctual ly 15 

choose to be sjambokked.  I  would have expected nothing less.  

Alr ight  let 's ta lk about your at t i tude towards the edi tor, 

Annel ien Dean, some of  the th ings that  you said yesterday. 

Well  le t 's start  of f  wi th your c la im that  she is a member of  the 

Nederduitse Gereformeerde Kerk .    Real ly?  ---   I  bel ieve so.  20 

I 'm not sure exact ly which congregat ion  or i t  could even be a 

spl inter movement.   But that ,  that  is the impression I  got .  

Real ly?  Where would you have found th is out  f rom?  ---   

She h 'm.. . ,  what d id she?  She shared the informat ion with me.  

Why would she te l l  you that  i f  she's Cathol ic?  ---   That 25 
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would be news to me.  

I  see and is she Afr ikaans-speaking?  ---   Annel ien Dean, 

sy –  sy is Af r ikaanse meisie van Bloemfontein af .  

Well  you're wrong, you know, she's not  Af r ikaans -

speaking.   I t 's  not  her home language.   ---   Rêrig(?) .   5 

You made assumpt ions.   ---   I  actual ly don' t  bel ieve that 

and I  th ink you're –  you're cast ing aspersions and I  –  I  real ly. . .   

You know, i f  –  i f  Annel ien is a member of  the Ca thol ic Church I 

don' t  bel ieve that  they would accept her at  communion.   I  don't  

–  I  don' t  bel ieve –  I  don' t  bel ieve that  she, that  is in fact  the 10 

case. 

Well . . .   - --   I  –  I 'd l ike her to –  to share documents with 

th is Court  i f  she's going to –  i f  she's going to make that 

statement.  

Well  maybe I 'm.. .   I  don't  know i f  she's a. . .   She grew up 15 

as a Cathol ic.   I  haven' t  asked her whether she is a.. .   - --   I  

don' t  th ink so.  

You don't  th ink she is?  ---   No. 

Alr ight ,  wel l  you're welcome to cross -examine her about 

how she grew up and what,  whether she is,  as you describe so 20 

derogator i ly.   You say she is part  of  the “ Boerevolk”  is  the 

word you used yesterday.   ---   Did I  say that? 

Yes.  ---   Could you repeat my words,  p lease?  

You said when you were discussion your sto ry and i ts 

re ject ion.   ---   Right .  25 
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You said wel l  one of  the th ings that  she could have done 

instead of  spik ing the story was that  she could have removed 

the quotat ion.   This was an indicat ion that  the “ Boerevolk” 

were r igid is what you said.   ---   Did I  say that? 

Yes.  Yes you did.  ---   Those are my –  my exact  words? 5 

Those were your words.   ---   Sy is  'n boerie –  Boere-

meisie.   Ek –  ek is ook 'n boor –  Boer.   Ek is 'n Boerejood.  My 

oupa was 'n Boer.  

You said Annel ien Dean had no experience of  publ ishing 

in the former Coloured areas.   ---   Right .  10 

Why did you te l l  us that?  ---   H'm, just  because I –  I  

bel ieve there was a –  a lot  of  misunderstanding with regards to 

the requirements of  the –  the issues in the communicat ion and 

the obstacles that  are faced wit h publ ishing in such 

communit ies.  15 

And lucki ly enough you of fered yoursel f  as the l ink you 

te l l  us to the Coloured community.   ---   I  was t rying to assist 

her.  

Yes because you understand how c oloured people th ink?  

---   H'm, that 's probably because I am a coloured. 20 

Oh I  see, a lr ight .   Your evidence was that:  

“Annel ien Dean wanted me to help her fake i t .   She was 

put out  by my relat ionships with the community.”  

- --   Right .  

“W ith Robbie Jansen.  She was „ostensib ly the edi tor ‟ .   25 
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“She had no experience.”  

Was that  your evidence yesterday?  ---   Yes,  she –  she asked 

me to –  to help her fake an editor in the know.  

 Yes.   ---   Someone who has contacts in the community et 

cetera. 5 

 So the person that  you were report ing to whose 

instruct ions you were supposed to adhere  to, you regarded her 

as actual ly not  having the competence or the capacity to be 

the edi tor of  th is newspaper?  ---   Not.   She was.. . ,  I  don' t  

bel ieve that  she –  she's very competent in terms of  edi tor ia l .   I  10 

th ink she has an abi l i ty to –  to manage a newspaper.  

 How long had she been a journal ist  wi th. . .?  ---   I  have 

absolute ly no idea.   

 Were you . . . ( intervent ion)  -- -   Al l  I  –  a l l  I  know is  that 

she had worked at the Dispatch and then at  the People 's Post.   15 

 Yes.  ---   She hasn' t  worked for any dai ly.   She's. . .  

 Do you know about what universi ty degree she has?  ---   

I 've got  absolute ly no clue.  

 Do you know whether she worked on what you would cal l  

“Black‟  or “White” newspapers in the past?  ---   No idea.  20 

 And in terms of  your racia l  prof i l ing thesis. . .   - --   H'm. 

 And the fact  that  th is was now going to be a newspaper 

targeted at  coloured people,  why would Media 24 in terms of  

your thesis go and appoint  th is white woman to edi t  th is 

newspaper. . .   - --   (Witness chuckles).  25 
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 Who would then require you to help her to fake the 

legi t imacy?  ---   I 've got  absolute ly no idea.  I  can only 

presume. 

Well  you wi l l  agree with me that  that  fact  is somewhat 

destruct ive of  your thesis about how they go about only using 5 

people of  part icular racia l  groups to wri te for oth er people?  ---   

H'm no, I  th ink –  no,  no I  th ink i t 's  a issue of  racia l  superior i ty,  

precisely,  you know, the ideologies art iculated by the Nat ional 

–  former Nat ional Party espoused by Naspers unt i l  qui te 

recent ly;   espoused by the NG Kerk unt i l  qui te rec ent ly.   I t 's  an 10 

issue of  racia l  superior i ty.   Annel ien Dean is cast  in a superior 

posi t ion because of  her race.  She is f rom a pr ivi leged White 

upper-class Af r ikaner community et  cetera,  et  cetera.   She has 

been given an opportuni ty to –  to be edi tor of  a –  of  papers in 

former Coloured communit ies.  15 

But you've to ld us that  the way in which Media 24 works 

is that coloureds are hired to wri te for Coloured newspapers, 

Af r icans for Af r ican newspapers and Whites for White 

newspapers.   ---   Right .  

So why would they appoint  a white woman to edi t  a 20 

coloured t i t le i f  your thesis was correct?  ---   Oh you're saying 

th is,  oh r ight .   H'm, i t 's  an interest ing point that  you ra ise.  

H'm.  Right ,  I  want to move on to the quest ion of  the 

var ious art ic les that  you wrote and th e evaluat ion meet ings.  

Now yesterday you test i f ied that  you had prepared a document 25 
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in  preparat ion for the evaluat ion meet ing,  that  document with 

your own notes.   ---   Right .  

I t 's  at page 27 of  your bundle, the document headed:  

Problems encountered with second product ion cycle.   You're 

with me?  ---   Yes. 5 

And you expla ined that  th is was you gathering your 

thoughts about the th ings that  you actual ly intended to say at  

the meet ing or the issues that  you intended to ra ise at  the 

meet ing.   ---   (No audible answer).  

That was your evidence.  ---   H'm, th is –  th is was the 10 

document that  I  prepared for the evaluat ion meet ing.   I  

at tempted to ra ise these issues and I  was essent ia l ly sub –  

subject  to abuse.  

Now, I  mean logical ly,  those issues that  were most 

important  to you at  the t ime would have been the issues that 15 

you would have referred to in your preparatory note.   ---   H'm: 

“Copy coming in  af ter deadl ines slowed the subbing 

process.   We were subbing copy late Fr iday and into the 

evening.”   

Well  I  mean, I 'm just  asking you.  I 'm putt ing a s imple 20 

proposit ion.   I f  you're going to go into a meet ing and you want 

to make a set  of  notes as to the issues that  you wish to ra ise. . .   

- --   Right .   Yes. 

. . .you're going to note down those issues.  ---   Right .  

What you've to ld the Court  is that the big issues for you 25 
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at  that  t ime concerned racia l  prof i l ing.   ---   Right .  

And the l ink between that  and the re ject ion of  your 

art ic les.   That was your evidence.  ---   H'm.. .  

Don' t  look at  the document.   Just . . .   - --   I 'm just  reading 

i t .  5 

That was your evidence.   ---   H'm yes.  

Yes wel l . . .   - --   Yes.  

You wi l l  see there's absolute ly nothing in th is document 

about racia l  prof i l ing.   - --   Right .   There 's a lso absolute ly 

nothing in th is document,  there 's no thesis about Judaism 10 

ei ther.  

Well  that 's another point  because I 'm going to argue 

there 's nothing in here about excessive hours and how they 

af fect you as a Jew, correct?  You've just  pointed that out .  ---  

Right ,  r ight  and I  don' t  bel ieve i t 's  reasonable to expect me to 15 

del iver a thesis a t  a –  at  a evaluat ion meet ing.  

Well . . .   I 'm going to argue that  th is document supports 

the argument that we're going to ra ise that  the issues that 

you've now come up with are a subsequent fabr icat ion.   ---   

(W itness chuckles).  20 

Your comment?  Because if . . .   - --   I t 's  completely 

r id iculous.  

Oh I  see, a lr ight .   And we –  there are now, there 're two 

meet ings that  I  want to deal with.   The one is a meeting that 

you had with Annel ien Dean on the 29 t h  and the next  is. . .   - --   25 
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29 t h .  

The meet ing at  the 30 t h  at  which you say you were 

dismissed.  You.. .   - --   Did we have a meet ing on the 29 t h? 

What was the.. .?  ---   Sorry.  

There was a discussion between you and Annel ien.   I  5 

don' t  know i f  I 've got  the date correct .   There was a discussion 

between you and Annel ien Dean wh en you discussed...   Let me 

take you through i t  sequent ia l ly and...   - --   Right .  

At  page 52 you deal with the . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   Sorry,  

sorry which. . .?  10 

Of your bundle.   ---   My bundle.    

Third paragraph.  ---   Right .  

This is you set t ing out  a note under the heading:  My 

experience of  d iscr iminat ion at  Media 24.   ---   23.. .  

 About the discussion between you and Annel ien Dean 15 

about the art ic le that  you wrote about J immy Dludlu.   ---   Sorry 

which para –  which paragraph? 

Third f rom the top.   I ' l l  just  read i t  in to the record.  ---   

Read i t .  

“My discussion with Annel ien centred on the fact  that  jazz 20 

was universal . ”  

- --   No, no that 's not  the th ird.  

 “More than that . . . ”  Are you with me?   - --   No I 'm looking 

for –  I  can' t  f ind the para. . .  

 Page 52 on.. .   - --   52,  oh sorry,  r ight .   Yes.  25 
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“More than that ,  i t  was the heart  and soul of  the Cape 

Flats and could be used to help us both cross some 

boundaries that  were present ing themselves as obstacles 

to future growth in  edi tor ia l  and content.   Perhaps a story 

about a b lack musician in a newspaper ostensib ly 5 

targeted at  people of  colour was too bold a step for 

Annel ien Dean?  The fact  that  she re jected the story,”  

sorry,  “ the fact  is that  she re jected the story for reasons 

that  are perhaps only understandable to a shr ink.  So I 

rewrote the story and interviewed Robbie Jansen. ”  10 

---   H'm, h 'm. 

“This way there was no denying the l ink or the community 

angle.   Robbie had a specia l  re lat ionship to those l iving 

in the Cape Flats and his comments helped to sol id ify an 

otherwise vapid,”  v -a-p- i -d, “p iece hast i ly put  together 15 

f rom music industry bumph,” b -u-m-p-h, “promo materia l  

that  had begun to f low into the newsroom at an incredible 

rate as a result  of  my own request for newsworthy 

stor ies.”  

That 's what you wro te,  correct?  ---   H'm. 20 

 Now your argument is that  Annel ien Dean didn' t  wri te –  

d idn' t  run the story that  you wrote about an Af r ican jazz 

musician because th is was a newspaper target ing a coloured 

market.   That 's your version.   ---   Wel l ,  that 's one of  the 

object ions tha t  she ra ised.  25 
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 No, she didn' t .   Your case is.. .   - --   No, you're put t ing 

words in my mouth.  

 Your case is that  the real  reason she didn' t  run that  story 

was because i t  was about an Afr ican jazz musician in a 

newspaper targeted at  the Coloured readership.   That 's where 5 

the discr iminat ion comes in.   ---   The –  that,  r ight ,  r ight  that  is 

one of  the –  one of  the reasons.  

 Yes.   So I  th ink i t  fo l lows that  what you're saying is  the 

People 's Post  wi l l  only publ ish stor ies about Af r ican musicians 

in t i t les that  are  directed towards an Af r ican demographic?  ---   10 

Right,  l ike City Vis ion –  Ci ty Vis ion ja.  

 Alr ight .   So and the react ion on that  thesis  then would 

have had nothing to do with the qual i ty of  the journal ism?  ---   

Sorry,  i f  I  may, there 's a confusion here be tween the two 

stor ies.   So I th ink you're conf lat ing the events.   There was a –  15 

they're two completely d i f ferent  stor ies.  

 No there 's the,  let 's cal l  i t  the Jimmy Dludlu story which 

dealt  wi th h im by himself  and then there 's your rework ing of  i t .   

- --   Then there 's Robbie –  then there 's Robbie 's views about 

J immy. 20 

 Yes, which for shorthand I ' l l  cal l  the one the Dludlu story 

and the other one the Jansen story,  a lr ight?  ---   Alr ight ,  r ight .  

 We're now ta lk ing about the Dludlu story and your c la im 

that  i t  was re jected because of  the pol icy of  racia l  prof i l ing and 

I 'm asking you whether i t  is  indeed your c la im that  the 25 
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re ject ion of  your story d id not  have maybe to do with the 

qual i ty of  the journal ism.  ---   Sorry,  you are saying that  the 

issue hadn' t  –  had nothing to do with the qual i ty?  

 No, I 'm asking you.  ---   Which. . .  

 Is your case.. .   - --   Ja? 5 

 . . . that  the qual i ty,  the poor qual i ty of  the piece was not 

the real  reason for i ts re ject ion?  -- -   No.  No there 's –  there 

was.. .   There 's nothing wrong with the –  the qual i ty of  the –  of  

the art ic le.   I t  had to go through a subbing process in any 

event.   H'm, the issue had to do with the demographics.  10 

 Well  Annel ien Dean says and I  th ink you've already 

ment ioned th is in your evidence, she ra ised with you concerns 

about you cut t ing and past ing art ic les wri t ten by other people 

into your art ic le and then present ing i t  as or ig inal  mater ia l .   -- -   

They were clear ly at t r ibuted.  15 

 Well  le t 's look at  page.. .   Just  before we debate about 

whether or not  i t  was clear ly at t r ibu ted,  you don' t  d isagree with 

me that when Annel ien Dean discussed the Dludlu art ic le with 

you she said she had a problem with the not ion of  cutt ing and 

past ing mater ia l  wri t ten by other people f rom the internet?  ---   20 

H'm, she had a problem with onl ine jou rnal ism.  She.. .  

 Please answer the quest ion.   ---   That 's what she said 

and then she, you know, then she, what d id she do?  She then 

accused me of  p lagiar ism.  

 Well  look at  page, look at  page 24 which is the –  of  the –  25 
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th is is respondent 's bundle.   Sorry,  i t 's  not .   Page 23.  That 's 

the art ic le that  you wrote as you presented i t  to her.   ---   

Documents.. .   Right .  

 You' l l  look in the fourth column there 's a long quote.   ---   

H'm.. .  5 

 Starts:  

“J immy was 13 years o ld when he picked up a cousin 's 

homemade guita r . ”  

- --   So.. .   So I 'm looking for that  where?  

 Fourth column f rom the lef t .   - --   Yes.   So.. .  10 

 You' l l  see there i t 's  scratched out with pen, with 

squiggles through i t .   - --    

“Dludlu 's onl ine. . .   Dludlu 's b iography i l lustrates a career 

r ich in metaphor.”  

 Yes and then there 's a quote.   ---   Quotat ion.  15 

 Quotat ion.   ---   Quotat ion.  

 Which.. .   - --   “ „Jimmy was 13 year o ld when.. . ‟ ” ,  ja  r ight .  

 Yes.   ---   Right .  

 And if  you look. ..   - --   I t 's  an extract .   I t 's  in quotat ion 

marks. 20 

 That,  that  is cut and paste f rom the internet s i te: 

music.org. . .   - --   I t 's  cal led. ..   Yes i t 's  cal led “ fair  use”.   I  –  I 'm 

quite ent i t led to make use of  that  paragraph.  In fact ,  I  was 

given permission by the author of  the biography to use it .  

 I 'm not going to debate with you your s tandards and but 25 
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i f . . .   - --   The.. .   In other words you're t ry ing to,  you're t rying to 

make some kind of  a l legat ion that –  that quot ing an onl ine 

biography is –  there 's something wrong with th is .  

 I 'm not even going to debate that  with you.   The point  is 

that  the edi tor has a standard that  she bel ieves needs to be 5 

adhered to in the way in which stor ies appearing in her 

newspaper are going to appear.   She does not want stor ies in 

her newspaper which have large t racts of  copied materia l  f rom 

other people 's . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   The issue, the issue is fa ir 

use and I 'm not prepared into any discussion as to –  as to 10 

that .  I t 's  a fa ir  use argument.  

 So where do we get . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   You're te l l ing 

me –  you're te l l ing me.. .   You're te l l ing me that  –  that  a 

journal ist  isn ' t  a l lowed to quote mater ia l  in a –  in  an art ic le.  

 But what. . .   - --   This is a p iece, th is is a. . .  15 

 You know, you and I can debate unti l  the cows go home 

what is p lagiar ism.   ---   Wel l  I  mean you're t rying to invent,  

you're t rying to invent ru les for –  for journal ism. 

COURT:  Please...   - --   Can I  point you to the. . .?  There 's a 

guidel ine issued.  20 

 The quest ion is . . . ( intervent ion)  -- -   There 's a 

guidel ine. . .  

 Mr Lewis.   ---   Sorry.  

Mr Lewis,  you are not  arguing.   You just  need to answer  

the quest ion.  The quest ion was put to you very s imply that d id 25 
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the edi tor,  that  she had a standard that  she bel ieved in.   ---   

Alr ight .  

That she did not want extensive quotat ions and the 

quest ion is d id –  and then she, as I  understand i t ,  took th is 

part icular p iece out,  that  that  was the reason for the refusal of  5 

the art ic le.   Is that  correct  or not  correct?  ---   The –  that  was 

one of  the reasons that was put to me.  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  But you say that 's not  the real  reason.  ---   

No, not .  

 You say the t rue reason.. .   - --   Yes.  10 

 . . . is  the subject  matter of  the art ic le.   ---   Right ,  i t 's  a 

psychological  problem that  Annel ien has.  

 What exact ly is her psychological  problem?  ---   She –  

she has a problem with the complexion of  J immy Dludlu.  

 But you yoursel f  said the fo l lowing and I  quote your own 15 

words about your art ic le.  

“A vapid p iece, hast i ly put  together f rom music industry 

bumph and promo mater ia l . ”  

Those are your own words and I  put  i t  to you on your own 

version the art ic le should have been spiked .   ---   Right  excuse 20 

me.  Excuse me, I  could say the same th ing about most of  the 

content in the Argus,  Cape Argus Tonight .   I t 's  an opinion that 

I  hold.  

 I f  that 's your own opin ion . . .   - --   Right .  

. . .of  your own piece of  work ,  why do you even begin to 25 
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suggest that  the spik ing of  your art ic le was not legi t imate?  ---  

H'm, their  –  there are –  I 'm prepared to accept that  the –  the 

piece wasn' t  ready for publ icat ion.   I  was prepared to retract 

the –  the piece.  I  rewrote the piece and resubmit ted i t .  

You're not prepared to accept that  you've come to, 5 

you've actual ly come to suggest that  the only real  reason that 

she could have had for re ject ing your p iece is that  she's a 

racist .   - --   No that 's not  the only reason.  No, no that 's not  the 

only reason, i t 's  the context  i n which the re ject ion occurred.   

That was the context .    10 

So she can' t  be a. . .   - --   I t  was in the context .  

She can't  be a . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   I t  was in the context 

of  a d iscussion about the demographics of  the –  of  the target 

market.  

She can' t  be a true professional edi tor who does not 15 

al low art ic les of  th is qual i ty to appear in the newspaper.   No, 

that  can' t  be the case.  The real  reason . . . ( intervention)  ---   

H'm, ja compared...   The th ing is. . .  

Can you please al low me to f in ish the quest ion?  ---   

Sorry.  20 

The real  reason must be because she's a racist .   - --   

H'm, Ms Dean is hold ing me to a h igher standard than she 

holds her other journal ists,  you know.  She –  th is is a 

community paper, the People 's Post.   People 's Post doesn' t  

have a very good reputat ion in terms of  journal ism.  I t  is  not  25 
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the New York T imes that I 'm wri t ing for.  

Mr Lewis,  you've uploaded, I  can' t  remember the exact 

number but  approximately I  th ink i t 's  12 videos about your l i fe  

onto the internet on a s i te cal led Zoopy, I  th ink Z -o-o-p-y.   Is 

that  correct?  ---   (Witness chuckles).  Yes.  5 

And I  don' t  know what the tota l  t ime they take up, maybe 

you yoursel f  know but I  would say i t  runs into several  hours.    

- --   About an hour.    

In video 4 where you fe l t  the need to te l l  the world at 

large about th is incident,  you ment ioned that because the 10 

editor was f rom Bloemfontein you in that  context  added that 

she must have thought that  a story about a b lack person was 

of  no interest  to the Coloured market.   That 's what you said.    

- --   Right .  

Isn ' t  that  r id iculous?  ---   I  th ink. . .  15 

Because somebody comes f rom Bloemfontein .   ---   Right .  

First  stereotype.  ---   Yes.  

Second stereotype is that  because of  that  she would 

th ink that  a story about a b lack person would be of  no interest 

to the Coloured market.   ---   Her –  her views became incredib ly 20 

clear when she re jected the –  Robbie 's v iews of  J immy.  You 

know, i t 's  just  th is idea that there 's st i l l  the Group Areas Act, 

st i l l  own af fa irs,  st i l l  –  st i l l  segregat ion in –  in  her mind of  how 

people are.  

Your decis ion to rewr i te the s tory and to br ing Robbie 25 
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Jansen.. .   The decis ion,  excuse me, to rewr i te the story and 

br ing Robbie Jansen into i t ,  i t  was yours,  i t  wasn' t  the edi tor 's, 

correct?  ---   H'm, I  –  I  d id take that  decis ion.   I  a lso t r ied to 

prove that –  that there was no basis for the re ject ion of  the 

story in terms of  the target market.  5 

I t  was your percept ion that  you needed to br ing a 

coloured musician into the art ic le. . .   ---   No.  

Excuse me, can I  f in ish?  ---   Sorry.  

Because you –  th is is what you say.   Your percept ion was 

that  in order to get  the edi tor ia l  –  the edi tor to accept your 10 

story you had to introduce a l ink to the Cape Flats.   ---   H'm, 

i t 's  a –  i t 's  an edi tor ia l  conceit .   I t 's the same . . . ( intervent ion)  

But I  have understood i t  correct ly  that  you put i t  

. . . ( intervent ion)  ---   I t 's  a conceit .  

A conceit .   What 's a conceit?  ---   H'm, i t 's  the same, the 15 

same argument using Ms Dean is a white,  so-cal led white 

person in a –  in  a so-cal led Coloured area.  Why am I  

object ing.   I t 's  –  i t 's . . .   (W itness sighs).   I t 's  an edi tor ia l 

conceit .   I  in terviewed Robbie because he was in the targe t 

market,  not  because he was a coloured. 20 

No but your percept ion of  the way in which Annel ien 

Dean's mind worked was that  you bel ieved that  in order to get 

your story accepted you now needed to introduce somebody 

into the story who f i t ted the demographic of  the readership.   ---   

Yes,  yes.  25 
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That was your logic.   ---   Yes,  yes that 's my logic.  

Yes.   But lo and behold,  i t  st i l l  wasn' t  publ ished.  

Remarkable.   ---   I t 's  amazing.  

I t  is  amazing.  Just  again for sake of  the record,  your –  

you cla im that  Annel ien Dean came to ask you to help her fake 5 

i t .   Wel l  she denies that.   ---   (W itness chuckles). 

And she says i t 's  r id iculous.   ---   I  a lso thought i t  was 

r id iculous.  

Are you seriously suggest ing that  Annel ien Dean would 

th ink that  somehow you could confer credib i l i ty on her?  ---   10 

Ja.   She thought that I  could somehow make my contacts in 

the community somehow.. . ,  through some kind of  operat ion 

those contacts would become he r contacts.  I  –  I  can' t  change 

the mater ia l  condit ions.   I  can't  make Rashid Lombard 

Annel ien Dean's f r iend.  She –  she refused to take a phone 15 

cal l  f rom –  form Mr Lombard.  

Alr ight .   Your response which and I 'm just going to read 

i t .   You don't  need to go  there.   In the pleadings f i le  page 88 

you said that  when she made these overtures to you on 22 

May, asking you to help her fake i t :  20 

“Appl icant b lunt ly refused and suggested his contacts in 

the area of  the target market,  which has been 

accumulated over a p rocess of  many years and in part  as 

a result  of  h is re lat ionship with the struggle. . . ”  

- --   Right .  25 
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“ . . .as wel l  as the music industry,  were not up for sale.”  

- --   Ful l  stop. 

 Okay.  So you actual ly,  you said that  to her?  ---   Yes.  

“My struggle h istory and my struggle contacts,  they're not 

up for sale.”    5 

---   My –  my struggle is not  necessari ly her struggle.    

Alr ight .   And i f  I  understand your v iews about your 

credib i l i ty in the Black community,  in one of  your videos you 

expla in that  you'd crossed th is rac ia l  d ivide because of  your 

ro le in  the l iberat ion struggle and you used th is phrase, “I  10 

don' t  consider myself  white”.   Correct?  ---   Right .   H'm.. . ,  

r ight .  

Can you expla in br ief ly to us how you transformed 

yoursel f?  ---   Oh.  H'm, wel l  f i rst ly I  don' t  consider myself  

beholden to the categorical  imperative of  racism.  Secondly 15 

during 1986/1987 I  was a member of  the End Conscript ion 

Campaign and the al ternat ive –  we had an alternat ive 

educat ion programme.  

No, I  don' t  want to know about.. .   I ' l l  get  to your h istory 

in the l iberat ion struggle later.   What I 'm trying to understand 20 

is how you ceased to be a white person;  i f  you can just 

expla in that.   ---   H'm, Dr Nevi l le  Alexander actual ly expla ined 

th is to me in my Pol i t ical  Studies 101.   I t 's  the concept of  non-

racia l ism as opposed to mult i racia l ism.   

I f  you don' t  consider yoursel f  to be white,  why are you 25 
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br inging a cla im in which you say that  you have been 

discr iminated against  as a white person?  ---   I 've been 

discr iminated because of  the –  the –  I 've been forced into –  

in to a racia l  category.   I 've been discr iminated as a result  of  

the mater ia l  condit ions that  –  that have informed the new 5 

South Af r ica and which cont inue to prevai l  in  th is country.  

Well  aren' t  you embarrassed to come to court to assert 

your r ight  as a whi te person?  ---   H'm, I  don' t  bel ieve that  that 

is what I  was assert ing.   H'm, i t 's  –  i t 's  a misreading of . . .   

Perhaps I  wasn' t  clear enough.  10 

H'm.  Annel ien Dean says in p lanning meet ings that were 

held she encouraged you to wri te about ja zz because she 

thought that  jazz,  art ic les about jazz might be of  interest  to the 

target market.   ---   Right .  

Do you agree with that?  ---   She, wel l  she demanded the 15 

heart  and soul of  the community.  

Yes,  i f  you could just  leave out the jargon.  Did she sa y 

to you that  she would be interested in running art ic les about 

jazz because they would interest  the target market?  ---   That 's 

what I  thought she said.  20 

Yes.  How does one actual ly wr i te about jazz in terms of  

your racia l  prof i l ing theory?  ---   Sorry?  

I 'm just  t rying to understand how one would ever wri te 

about jazz under your thesis of  racial  prof i l ing.   ---   H'm, have 

you –  have you tr ied dancing about archi tecture?  25 
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Excuse me?  ---   Wri t ing about jazz is l ike dancing about 

archi tecture.   I t 's  qui te a t r icky th ing.  

Are there no white jazz fans in Cape Town?  ---   Are you 

t rying to turn my own argument against  me?  I  don' t  th ink i t  wi l l  

hold. 5 

Isn ' t  i t  so that a lmost every jazz group in South Af r ica 

consists of  people f rom dif ferent  racia l  groups in i t?  - --   Who 

knows.  

Well  you, you're an expert .   - --   H'm.. .   To te l l  you the 

t ruth,  Abdul lah Ibrahim, Riana (?) Abrahams actual ly introduced 10 

me to Abdul lah.   I 've got  photographs of . . .   

No, no I  don' t  want to know that  whether you know 

about. . .   - --   When –  Dol lar Brand when he came back f rom 

exi le.   The day he arr ived.  

I f  you go on the internet and you do a search of  Media 24 15 

papers,  I  want to put  i t  to you that  you're going to f ind 

hundreds of  art ic les about jazz,  about Mir iam Makeba, about 

Hugh Masekela and they are pr inted in newspapers of  al l  sorts.   

Do you dispute that?  ---   H'm you'd have to give me –  you'd 

have to give me the years,  the dates.  20 

Why?  ---   Because I  bel ieve editor ia l  pol ic ies have 

changed considerably over the last  three years as a result ,  in 

part  –  in  part  because of  such –  th is case.   There 's been.. .  

Because of  th is case?  ---   Yes.   Francois Groepe for 

instance was appointed af ter I  –  I  le f t .   He's. . . ,  you know 25 
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there 's been an at tempt.   Feria l  Haffajee  was appointed to –  to 

City Press.   There 's been an at tempt to essent ia l ly reconstruct .   

Because of  th is case?  ---   One of  many attacks against 

the corporat ion.   I 'm not the only person to –  to be launching 

these at tacks.  5 

Alr ight .   Let 's go on to the Robbie Jansen art ic le.   Where 

did you interview him?  ---   H'm, I  in terviewed him over the 

phone. 

Well ,  d id you interview him.. .?  I  thought you interviewed 

him at  West End.  ---   No, he invi ted me to the West End and 10 

in order to pay my respects I  went.  

Sorry you've lost  me.  I  mean, where you in terview a man 

is not  a d if f icul t  issue  to deal with .   ---   H'm, i t 's  not  an issue.  

So I  would just  l ike a fa ir ly stra ight forward answer.   -- -   I ,  

I . . .  15 

Did you interview him at  West End or not?  ---   I  t racked 

him down.  I  –  I  –  how did I  t rack him down?  I  cal led the UCT 

Col lege of  Jazz.   They put me in touch with Pastor Glen 

Robertson.  I  cal led Glen  and then Glen gave me his telephone 

number.   Rashid Lombard also of fered me the telephone 20 

number af ter –  af terwards.  

I  ask the quest ion again.   Did you.. .?  -- -   So you want to 

know where,  where did I  in terview him?  I  in terviewed him over 

the te lephone.  

Well ,  I  take i t  then that  you didn' t  in terview him in his 25 
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home.  ---   No. 

And you didn' t  in terview him at  West End?  ---   I  went to 

pay my respects.   I  was.. .   

What does that  mean?  ---   He invi ted me to come and 

l isten to –  to h is music.  (W itness chuckles).   I  fe l t  obl iged to 5 

go.  

Well  look at  what –  look at  your notes of  the evaluat ion 

meet ing,  page 27.  ---   Sorry,  evaluat ion. . .  

Of your bundle.   ---   My bundle. 

Last paragraph.  “This week.. . ” ,  are you with me?  ---   10 

H'm. 

“This week I got an exclusive interview with Robbie 

Jansen on amongst other th ings Jimmy Dludlu SAMA 

award,  in i tself  no mean feat .  After going through a 

var iety of  channels,  His People 's Chu rch Pastor Glen, I  15 

eventual ly met with the old saxophonist  at  the West End 

in Rylands, one of  our target areas in Athlone. ”  

- --   Right .  

Now does that  sentence not mean that  you got an 

exclusive interview with Robbie Jansen at  the West End in 20 

Rylands?  ---   No,  no.   No, no I  eventual ly managed to meet 

h im personal ly.   I t  –  i t  doesn' t  say anything about that  I  

in terviewed him there.  

You, at  th is meet ing you were asked.  ---   Right .  

Where you had interviewed Robbie Jansen and you said 25 
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i t  was West End and you were challenged about whether you 

knew where West End was.  Do you recognise that 

conversat ion?  ---   I 've got  absolute ly no recol lect ion.  

Now I  want you to look at  the art ic le that  you wrote;  

page 37 of  the respondent 's bundle.   At  page 37 your sentence 5 

reads the fo l lowing:  

“However,  speaking f rom his Cape Town home, local 

Goema king Robbie Jansen cr i t ic ised the industry 

celebrat ion.”  

That means?  How do you –  why do you say he was speaking 10 

f rom his home?  ---   Because he was at  home at  the t ime.   

(W itness chuckles).  

 So you interviewed him by te lephone at  home?  ---   Yes. 

 And then you went to pay your respects at  West End?  ---   

Precisely.  15 

 And you say just  down f rom the top of  page 38:  

“ „Dludlu,  however,  was in Mozambique and unavai lable 

for comment, but  he spoke to the press via h is record 

label. ‟ ”  

- --   Yes.  20 

 Who are you in fact  quot ing there?  ---   H'm, Chris Syren.  

 But that 's not  Dludlu then.  ---   H'm, th is is the problem 

with the music industry.   This is –  th is is essent ia l ly the 

problem that  Annel ien ident if ied,  but  she att r ibuted 

mal ic iousness.  25 
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 But Chris,  how can Chris Syren.. .?  Who –  is  th is Chris 

Syren?  ---   Ja,  agent for J immy Dludlu.  

 “ „To me, winning the SA Music Awards means a lot . ‟ ”  

- --   This is precisely what is in the press re lease.  ---   I  d idn't  

wri te the press re lease.  5 

 But “he spoke” means somebody spoke to somebody 

else.   ---   Ja I  know, so i t 's  a conceit .  

 So these are not J immy Dludlu 's words?  -- -   H'm, I  

bel ieve they are.  

 Oh you, r ight .   - --   You're asking me is th is J immy 10 

Dludlu 's music?  I  can also play the same song.  

 Page 39, about 10 l ines f rom the bottom you quote 

Robbie Jansen as saying the fo l lowing.  Wel l ,  before we get 

there,  you say that  Robbie Jansen said to you that  a l l  these 

people who had won these jazz awards wer e a bunch of  15 

pretenders.   ---   Sorry?  

 The quote is. . .   - --   Where? 

 Page 39.  ---   Hmm. 

 You say Robbie 's a lbum Nomad Jez was nominated for a 

SAMA;  d idn' t  make i t .   - --   Right .  20 

 And then you say what he says is . . .   - --   Oh.  

“ „ I  went up there.   Everybody is pretending to be 

somebody else.   I  d idn' t  see any art ists,  just  a whole lot 

of  pretenders. ‟ ”  

- --   Right .  25 
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“ „A ( indist inct)  I  guess.   I t 's  not  who you are but  who are 

you wearing. ‟ ”  

- --   Yes.    

 And then:  

“ „ I t 's  unfortunate I  d idn' t  get  the award. ‟ ”  5 

---   Right .  

“ „ I f  I  d id I  would have gotten i t .   Cheap words I  guess.  

The pr ize money would have been welcome. ‟   Af ter some 

encouragement and despite warnings by his producer not 

to ta lk to the press. . . ”  10 

---   Right .  

“ . . .Jansen commented on Dludlu 's pr ize feat . ”  

So who is h is producer?  ---   Chris,  h 'm.. .   Sorry,  who.. .   Gosh, 

I 'd  have to look in my.. .   H'm.. .   (Witness sighs).   I 've –  I 've 

got  a –  he 's a  contact  in my Rolodex(?).   My.. . .  15 

 You see, would you blame me i f  I  had to read th is to 

imagine a si tuat ion o f  here 's David Roberts (sic)  s i t t ing,  here 's 

Robbie Jansen si t t ing,  here 's Robbie Jansen's producer.  

David Roberts is at tempt ing to interview Robbie Jansen and 

the producer.  20 

COURT:  David Lewis.   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Sorry,  David Lewis and the producer is 

warning him to keep quiet .   - --   H'm.. .   That 's another conceit .   

I t 's  Robbie 's own concern about not ta lk ing to the press,  so i f  

he didn't  want to ta lk to the press he would have ended the 25 
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in terview.  He would have said i t 's of f  record.  

 So the sentence, “Desp i te  warnings by the producer not 

to ta lk to the press”,  is your invent ion?  ---   I t 's  Robbie 's 

invent ion.  

 Robbie 's invent ion?  ---   Yes he's a musician,  not a. . . ,  5 

not  a reporter.   I  –  I 'm just report ing the –  what –  exactly what 

he said and I 'm trying to provide some context  in which he said 

i t .  

 I 'm just  going to give you Annel ien Dean's version as to 

what the problems were,  the problems that  she not iced with 10 

th is art ic le and why she did not want to put i t  in to the 

newspaper.   You' l l  agree with me i t  reco rds Robbie Jansen as 

making disparaging remarks about the music industry in 

general  and about J immy Dludlu?  ---   H'm, Robbie is ent i t led 

to h is opin ion.  I  th ink he's l ived through enough 15 

. . . ( intervent ion)  

 I 'm not arguing wi th you about whether he's ent i t led to 

h is opin ion.   ---   Wel l . . .  

 Sure he's ent i t led to h is opin ion.   ---   Right .  

 That 's what i t  says that  h is opin ion is.   ---   I  don' t  th ink 20 

they're d isparaging.   I  th ink,  you know, i t 's  industry ta lk.   I t 's 

not  something. . .   (W itness chuckles).   This  is not  uncommon.  

I t 's  –  i t 's  –  most musicians in South Af r ica would probably 

have simi lar opin ions.  

 Well  r ight ly or wrongly,  she was concerned about 25 
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whether these controversia l  quotat ions were indeed Robbie 

Jansen's words and she asked you to p lease giv e her h is 

te lephone number so that  she could check.   ---   Right .  

 Correct?  ---   Yes.  

 Yes.   She said that  unt i l  i t  was double -checked she did 5 

not  want to run with the story.   ---   Right .  

 She says that you responded by screaming and shout ing .   

You cont inuously used the “F” word.   ---   No.  

 She says that  what you shouted, words to the ef fect of  

that  you would not  wri te another th ing for “ th is fucking 10 

newspaper”.   You held your head in your hands and you would 

not give her Jansen's te lephone number.   ---   I t 's  a complete 

fabr icat ion.   I  gave Annel ien Glen Robertson's te lephone 

number.   

 There was no outburst  f rom you?  ---   I  don‟t  recal l .  15 

 You don' t  recal l?  Can you th ink of  any reason why 

Annel ien Dean would invent a version where you started 

screaming and shout ing?  ---   Ja. 

 Ja,  what 's i t?  ---   H'm, Pastor Glen Robertson is a pastor 

at  His People 's Church and Annel ien seems to have a problem 20 

with re l igion.   She has a problem with my re l ig ion;   she's got  a 

problem with J immy –  J immy's re l igion (witness chuckles);  

she's got  a problem with everyone.  

 Alr ight .   She says you f lew into a rage and you stormed 

out of  the of f ice.   She then contacted the Human Resources 25 
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manager and asked for a meet ing to be convened.  ---   No, not .  

 With. . .   - --   Sorry.  

 So you weren' t  there,  so you wouldn' t  real ly know th is.    

- --   Wasn' t  I  there?   Alr ight .  

 No.  She phoned the Human Resources manager and 5 

asked for a meeting to be convened which then led to the 

meet ing,  what you would –  you cal l  the evaluat ion meet ing of  

30 May where she, Mr Charles and Mr Tal jaard were al l  

present.   ---   Tsh.  

 Well  you can' t  d ispute that .   ---   No, I  th ink i t 's  a 10 

fabr icat ion.  

 Oh.  ---   Her at tempt to actual ly create some kind of  a –  a 

backstory to back up her own story which –  i t  doesn't ,  never 

happened. 

 What never happened?  ---   I  don' t  actual ly bel ieve in –  i t  15 

was a busy,  on a busy paper –  that  she even had t ime to  –  to 

invent what she.. .   She has created an.. .   She singlehandedly 

complained Tal jaard has got another meet ing.   No, the only 

meet ing which occurred was the evaluat ion meet ing.   I  don't  

th ink Warren Charles would have had t ime to –  to meet with 20 

her personal ly on some ( indist inct) .  

 Well  she was somewhat perturbed she had a member of  

staf f  screaming and shout ing in her of f ice and te l l ing her to F 

of f .   - --   No, ( inaudible).  I  d idn' t .  

 You didn' t?  ---   No. 25 
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 Alr ight .   I 'm to ld the fo l lowing th ings happened at  that 

meet ing.   You cla imed that  you had street  . . . ( intervent ion)  

COURT:  Sorry,  is th is the evaluat ion meet ing?         

MR KAHANOVITZ:  This is the. . . ,  yes.   Wel l ,  what he cal ls the 

evaluat ion meet ing.   Our version is  that  the meet ing was cal led 5 

to d iscuss his performance and his behaviour,  h is 

unacceptable behaviour.   You to ld management that  you had 

street  credib i l i ty and that  you  are the ra inbow nat ion in one 

person.  Is that a phrase that  you use?  ---   No i t  wasn't .  

 Not,  okay.   Mr Taljaard to ld you that your behaviour was 10 

unacceptable,  but  you couldn' t  contro l  yoursel f  at  the meet ing 

and you started shout ing and screaming abuse .  ---   No.  

 At  the three members of  the management team.  ---   No, 

no the issue was my performance.  I t  wasn' t  –  the issue wasn' t  

my behaviour.   I t  was a performance evaluat ion.  15 

 Did you scream and shout at  the meet ing?  ---   No I  d id 

not .  

 Did not .  You warned the management team that  they 

should be aware of  or careful  who they were messing with.   

You said that you had contacts in Qiblah.   ---   H'm, Warren 20 

Charles,  h 'm (witness chuckles) ,  brought up th is issue.  He 

said,  th is was af ter the –  the discussion about Sabbath 

observance.  He then brought up th is issue.  He said no, he's a 

member of  MK. 

 Why would he have brought th is up?  ---   I 've got 25 
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absolute ly no idea.  There was an at tempt to int imidate me into 

s lavish obedience to the company.  

 Just  can you expla in the logic here?  The man to ld you 

he was a member of  a d isbanded mi l i tary wing of  the Af r ican 

Nat ional Congress.   ---   Right .   5 

 With the view to get t ing you to commit  yourself  to s lavish 

obedience to Naspers?  ---   Right ,  I  haven' t  had the 

opportuni ty to ver i fy whether Warren Charles is in fact indeed 

a –  a former member of  a d isbanded organisat ion.  

 You shouted at  them that  they weren' t  qual i f ied to judge 10 

your work as you were a seasoned journal ist .   - --   H'm, I  d idn't  

actual ly have t ime.  I t  would have been an interest ing. . . ,  to 

actual ly go through that  but  my –  I  d idn' t  have t ime to even 

vouch for anything.   I  was just  skopped uit ,  l ike a dog.   

 Warren Charles said he did ment ion to you that  you 15 

should not  ta lk about Qiblah,  because you don' t  know what 

you're ta lk ing about.   ---   I  actual ly do have contacts with 

Qiblah.   Moulana Ihsaan Hendricks does know me.   Rabbi Greg 

Alexander a lso knows me.   I  do.  

 Didn' t  you point  out  somewhere that  at  some stage you 20 

say you were engaged to a Musl im woman?   ---   H'm.. . ,  ja  no.  

 Whose family was involved in Qiblah.   - --   Yes,  her father 

was.  

 Yes.   So.. .   - --   (Witness chuckles).   But i t  d idn' t  work 

out .   I t . . .  25 
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 I t 's  not  that  strange then that  you might be shout ing at  a 

meet ing. . .   - --   No. 

 . . . that  you have contacts in Qiblah and that. . .   - --   Are 

you saying,  are you al leging that  I  was announcing the cal l  of  

Is lam during a evaluat ion meet ing?  I  th ink i t 's  completely 5 

absurd. 

 I 'm not a l leging anything.   I 'm te l l ing you what my cl ie nt 

said you said at  the meet ing and that  they say that . . .   Mr 

Charles says you . . . ( intervent ion)   ---   You're asking me do I  –  

do I have Musl im f r iends?  Yes.  I  have int imate re lat ions –  10 

re lat ions with people of  the Musl im fa i th.   I t  doesn' t  make me a 

Musl im. 

 I 'm not asking you whether you're a Musl im or. . .   I 'm 

te l l ing you that  Mr Charles  says that  you to ld them at the 

meet ing,  sorry you to ld h im that  you had contacts in Qiblah 15 

and that  they must be careful  who they're messing wi th.   ---   

No i t  was a response to Warren Charles's absurd.. .   (W itness 

chuckles).   You know, the most absurd –  absurd attempt to 

int imidate me.   You know, he was l ike sort  of . . .   

 What d id he do?  ---   Wel l  I  th ink i t  was an enquiry as to, 20 

you know, my –  my histor ical  background in the f reedom –  

f reedom st ruggle.   I  don' t  have to d ivulge my relat ionships 

with,  h 'm, Walter Sisulu.   

 You don' t  have to d ivulge them?  ---   I  –  I  don' t  have to 

d ivulge my –  that  k ind of  informat ion.  25 
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 Oh.  Oh were you an underground operat ive?   ---   I  –  I 'm 

not at  l iberty to te l l  you.  

 Why would you not be at  l iberty to te l l  us?  ---   How 

would I  know? 

 They also say that  af ter you lost  your temper and 5 

appeared to,  i f  I  can use the common expression,  “be of f  your 

head”. . .   ---   (W itness chuckles). 

 . . .you were escorted of f  the prem ises because you were 

out of  contro l .   - --   Yes,  I  –  I  was –  I  was completely,  h 'm, not 

in l ine.   I  wasn' t  towing the l ine.   I  –  I  wasn' t  s lavishly obeying 10 

authori ty.   Ek het n ie “Ja baas” gesê nie.  

 Ja.   Wel l  the edi tor wi l l  say,  i f  she needs to test i fy,  that 

your conduct was that of  an unbalanced person.  You were 

raving and out of  contro l .   Management became concerned 

about your cont inued presence and you were asked to leave 15 

immediately and you were to ld that  you should not  come back 

to work but  that  you  would be paid for the balance of  your 

contract .   Comment?  ---   H'm, I  do dance on Friday nights 

occasional ly.   

 Alr ight .   Later that  evening you phoned Annel ien Dean.  20 

You'd been dr ink.. .   You said you'd been dr inking wine.  ---   

(W itness makes sof t sound). 

 You said that  you were not angry with her,  but  with the 

“White dominee ” .   - --   H'm.. .  

 Remember th is conversat ion?  ---   I 'm sure I  remember  25 
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th is and there –  I  had scheduled an appointment to meet 

Gabeba Baderoon which I  had to cancel and then she sa id no, 

let 's –  le t 's meet on the Thursday.  So I actual ly met with 

Gabeba in Athlone on Thursday and then what happened was I  

actual ly walked.  My –  my motorbike broke down.  I  had to 5 

leave i t  somewhere and I –  I  walked home and I  –  I  –  f rom 

Athlone.  I  came under the br idge at  Observatory and there 

was a gal lery opening.  

 Sorry,  why are you te l l ing us th is?  What has th is got  to 

do. . .?  ---   The –  the conversat ion, I  cal led Annel ien.   I  –  I  10 

plucked up enough courage.  This is.. .   I  went to an –  a gal lery 

funct ion and I  cal led Annel ien and I  said:   Annel ien, you're 

going to remember me.  You know, I  don' t  hold anything 

against  her.   I  might have said something about “ die –  d ie 

groot dominee of  d ie grootbaas”,  I  don' t  know.  There might be 15 

some veraci ty.  

 Are you prepared to at  least  concede that  there was 

some shout ing at th is meet ing?  ---   H'm, I  don' t  bel ieve 

tempers were ra ised.  

 Nobody's tempers were ra ised?  ---   No, no i t  was a. . .   20 

No.  There were hardly. . .   

 I t 's  just ,  i t  was a normal conversat ion and  then you were 

escorted of f  the premises?  ---   No i t  wasn' t  normal.  I t  –  i t  was 

just ,  no i t  was just  a very cruel ,  hurtfu l  s i tuat ion where I 

couldn' t . . .   H'm you know, just  to comprehend the –  the amount 25 
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of  abuse that  was being –  which was thrown at  me.  They were 

abusive. 

 Well  surely you would have reacted then?  ---   H'm.. .  

 You don' t  sound l ike a man who is prepared to put  up 

with that  abuse.  ---   Wel l ,  what am I  supposed.. .?  No, what 5 

am I  supposed to do?  There 're three people ganging up 

against  me.  Ah.. . ,  there 's nothing I  can do.  

 Well  you to ld them where to get  of f .   - --   H'm, I  might 

have said:   Jou ma se poes.  

 Alr ight  wel l . . .   I  just  want to ask you.  I  need to deal 10 

br ief ly with your c la im that  racia l  prof i l ing exists as an editor ia l 

pol icy.   You cla im that you were prevented f rom wri t ing for 

Af r ican t i t les.   Which Af r ican t i t les were you prevented f rom 

wri t ing for?  ---   Well  th is is the weird th ing:   Ci ty Vis ion.   I t 's 

more accurate to say i t 's . . .   I  submit ted stor ies to –  there was 15 

a common pool.   Al l  edi tors f rom the WP Koerante could 

actual ly make use of  the stor ies and photographs that  were 

submitted to that  common pool.   The fact  is,  is  that  no -one at 

City Vis ion used any of  my mater ia l .   I  remember the –  the –  I  

took a photograph and th is is a lso qui te weird in terms of  the 20 

contract ,  is  in terms of  the contract any photography that  I  –  

any pictures that  I  took are owned by the company.  I  took 

some pictures of  some –  of  some young black musicians 

playing accordion on Long Street  and I  th ought i t  was quite an 

interest ing image.  So I  submit ted that  and I  actual ly cal led 25 
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Ci ty Vis ion.   I  said:   Here 's an interest ing pic you might. . .   

Khayel i tsha kids in Cape Town, p laying accordion.   Needless 

to say the –  i t  wasn' t  used.   Bel lvi l le  Metro-Burger a lso didn't  

make use of  my mater ia l .   The only –  the only publ icat ion to 

use my mater ia l  was the Mitchel l ‟s Pla in Metro -Burger under 5 

Mandy King.  

 But how does th is, I  mean you've already made the point 

that  Annel ien Dean would make, that  the copy goes onto a 

system.  ---   Right .  

 And anyone of  the t i t les can draw f rom that copy.   ---   10 

Right.  

 So how would they prevent an Af r ican t i t le  as you would 

cal l  i t ,  f rom using an art ic le that  was wri t ten by you?  I t  would 

need to have some sort  of  stamp on i t ,  sa ying:   Wri t ten by a 

white journal ist .   Do not use.   ---   Ja i t 's  a result  of  the taboos 15 

that  have and the st igma that  is –  is  resul ted f rom apartheid.  

There 's th is percept ion if  your name is such –  i f  your. . .   I f  

there 's a percept ion that  you are one of  s ome kind of  racia l  –  

fa l l  in to a racia l  category,  that 's where you're put .   I t 's  –  i t 's  

completely. . .   Segregat ion is a –  actual ly natural ,  i f  you fo l low 20 

the logic of  Media 24.   I t 's  a natural  course of  . . . ( intervent ion)   

 Are you seriously suggest ing that  a l l  the edi tors  of  these 

various t i t les who need mater ia l  to put  into their  newspapers, 

whether i t 's  f i l lers, features,  whatever i t  is . . .   - --   ( Indist inct  –  

speaking in an undertone).  25 
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 Actual ly s i t  there and say to themselves. . .   - --   No. 

 “Let 's look at  who wrote th is art ic le.”   ---   (W itness 

chuckles).   I t 's  –  i t 's  not  even so extensive.   I t 's  –  i t 's  they've –  

they've already been taught th is at nursery school.  

 Now another very strange feature of  your case is that  you 5 

expla in your select ion as a reporter, sorry as a subeditor and 

staf f  member on the basis that Media 24 were prepared to 

presume you to be coloured because you were wri t ing for 

coloureds and.. .   - --   I t 's  b izarre.  

 I t  is  b izarre.   ---   I  can only –  I  can only ( indist inct) .  10 

 Because another possib le explanat ion,  besides being 

bizarre,  is that  what you have to say  is just  nonsense.  ---   

H'm, I  bel ieve i t 's  a –  i t 's  a logical  statement  in the l ight  of  the 

–  the manner in which Media 24 has evolved over t ime.   So 

there 's extensive di f ferent iat i on caused as a result  of  15 

apartheid.   

 The only reason you've invented th is version is that  you 

needed to come up with some sort  of  explanat ion for your 

racia l  prof i l ing thesis as to why you got chosen to work on a 

Coloured newspaper.   ---   No, no.   No, no I  bel ieve there is 20 

actual ly a concerted ef fort  to –  to prof i le  people in terms of  

race.  I t 's  –  i t 's  just  an inabi l i ty to deal with issues of  race in 

the –  in  the company.  This should be some kind of  a ei ther re -

educat ion programme or a sensi t ivi ty,  racia l  sensi t ivi ty t ra in ing 

in –  in  the company.  25 
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 I  just  want to read what you had to say into the record.   

I t 's  p leadings f i le page 23, paragraph 1.2.1.   ---   Sorry,  

p leadings.  

 Pleadings f i le page 23, paragraph 1.2.1.  ---   Ja.   Sorry,  

what –  what 's the page? 5 

 Pleadings f i le  page 23.  ---   Ja. 

 Paragraph 1.2.1.   ---   Right .   2.1,  ja.  

“Black employees si t  at  their  desks ,  working on t i t les 

geared towards an exclusively b lack target market. ”  

- --   Ja.  10 

“White employees also si t  at  their desks, working on 

t i t les geared towards an exclusively White target market.  

Coloured employees are given a modicum of support and 

leeway for breaching their  status as coloured by working 

for a White market and vice versa and there may be 15 

except ions.   The racia l  exclusiv i ty may also have ended, 

but  the segregat ion remains,  s ince Blacks are prevented 

f rom supplying copy for whites and vice versa.   In fact,  

the appl icant is of the opin ion that  the only reason that  

he was al lowed to supply a copy for a coloured market is 20 

that  he was already presumed to be coloured by the 

rat ional isat ions and classif icat ions of  h is employer.   

Furthermore,  he was al lowed to sub copy for a b lack t i t le 

but was not a l lowed to supply the t i t le  with the story.”  

Mr Lewis,  that  is –  I  can' t  th ink of  any other expression than to 25 
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say i t 's  a load of  rubbish.   ---   H'm, I  beg to d isagree.  

 Yes okay.   You also used the expression that  you were –  

no need to go to the page.  I ' l l  just  give you the quote.   I t 's  in 

your bundle at  page 53.  You said you were “cast  as some ki nd 

of  coloured in a racist  parable”.   ---   Ja.   Sorry where?  My 5 

bundle? 

 We don' t  need to go there.   That 's your expression.   You 

were cast  as some sort  of  coloured.  Sorry,  you were cast .. .   

I ' l l  give you the exact  quote:  

“ . . .cast  as some kind of  coloured in a racist  parable.”  10 

---   Right .   I t 's  sad.  I t 's  sad.  

 Could you br ief ly. . .   H'm?  ---   I t 's  –  i t 's  very sad.  

 I t 's  very sad, a lr ight .  

COURT:  Sorry,  th is is respondent 's bundle 53?     

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Appl icant,  sorry,  appl icant 's bundle.  15 

COURT:  Ja.        

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Page 53. 

COURT:  Oh okay.   ---   Ja i f  I  can just  perhaps remind you.        

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Sorry is that . . .?  ---   Sorry,  can I  just 

perhaps remind you?  “Other coloured”.  20 

 Excuse me?  ---   Sorry,  there was a category ca l led 

“Other coloured”.  

 Yes.   ---   You could,  i f  you were white,  c lassif ied white 

you could be reclassi f ied coloured, as in other –  “Other 

coloured”.    25 
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 H'm?  ---   The –  the results of  racia l . . .   I f  you cross that –  

that  l ine.   I  suf fered because of  the system of  aparthe id in th is 

country art iculated by Naspers.  

 I  just  want to put  i t  to you that  i t  is  you that  are obsessed 

with racia l ,  cul tural  and re l igious stereotypes.  You are the 5 

person who is obsessed with  ident i ty.   ---   Right .   Right .  

 I  just  want to te l l  you.. .   - --   No I  want to see th is.  

 H'm?  ---   I  want to see –  I  want to see where th is goes.  

 Alr ight .   ---   I 'm.. .  

 When i t  comes to the Jews you are obsessed with who is 10 

orthodox, progressive,  secular,  l iberal .   You want to te l l  us  

about the Boers.  You want t o te l l  us that  Tal jaard is a 

dominee .   You want to te l l  us that  Annel ien Dean is f rom 

Bloemfontein.   You te l l  us that  Zulpha Khan who test i f ied 

against  you in your int imidat ion case  has a servant mental i ty.  15 

You te l l  us that  Tony O'Rei l ly is the lying I r is hman.  You te l l  us 

that  Media 24 is the D F Malan organisat ion.   Those are your 

obsessions.   ---   H 'm, I  put  i t  to you I  actual ly spent two years 

in the USA and none of  these issues were a problem.  They're 

a progressive country with democrat ic t radi t ion.   I f  you're a 20 

black person you can become President.   Doesn' t  matter 

actual ly what your ethnic. . .   Ethnic i ty in the country,  i t 's . . .   

South Af r ica I  f ind i t  –  i t 's  a. . .   We haven' t  overcome race, 

ethnic i ty and class.   We st i l l  b l ink at . . .   I  don' t  see any,  any 

progression forward.   I t 's  just  more of  the same old shi t ,  25 
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excuse my French.  

COURT:  Ja please.  I  don' t  mind you quot ing what people 

have said and what you said,  but you wi l l  not  use abuse 

language.  ---   Sorry.  

 In answering a quest ion.   Do you understand that?  ---   5 

(No audible answer).      

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I  want to put  i t  to you that  what you do and 

what you're doing in th is t r ia l  is  you expla in the conduct and 

mot ives of  others to yourself  through the pr ism of  race and 

re l igion.   You re l ieve yourse l f  of  the obl igat ion to examine your 10 

own conduct .   ---   Right ,  r ight .  

 And you use these phrases as an excuse for your own 

ant isocia l  behaviour.   ---   Right  wel l ,  on the one –  you see, on 

the one hand you –  you're saying I 'm the creator of  th is racia l  

parable;   on the other hand you're saying wel l ,  I 'm just  seeing 15 

i t  through a pr ism.  So there 's a contradict ion in your –  in  your 

l ine of  argument.   There is a –  a pr ism of  racia l ,  you know, 

racia l ized history.   I t 's  something that is –  that  you are 

conf ronted with d irect ly on a day-to-day basis in any newsroom 

in South Af r ica.   The problem is –  is  i f  you –  i f  you lack the 20 

capacity,  the tools to deal with that  pr ism, essent ial ly what 

happens is you end up ref lect ing back that  –  that  h istory.  We 

–  we don' t  go forward.   There 's no progress.   Essent ia l ly what 

happens is that  the –  the publ ishing industry,  the media 

becomes a conservat ive force so we're t rying to conserve our 25 
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and –  and protect ,  you know the essent ia l . . .   Media 24 is 

looking for protect ion for the –  that  absurd, abnormal society 

that  was created as a result  of  –  of  racia l izat ion.   We need to 

move forward and –  and my at tempts to –  to indicate a means 

forward were met at  Media 24 with resistance.  5 

 M'Lord,  just  for purposes of  the record,  the reference  to 

Zulpha Khan and describ ing her as having a servant mental i ty 

is at  page.. . ,  respondent 's. . .   - --   Sorry,  I 'd  l ike to object .   The 

respondent 's at tempt ing to ra ise an issue that  was brought 

before a court .   He's ent i t led to br ing the judgment and the 10 

proceedings of  that  court ,  but  to –  he wants to ra ise issues 

that  are just hearsay.  

 Mr Lewis,  I 'm just  quot ing your own words in one of  your 

own onl ine post ings.   I f  you want the exact  language it 's  your 

own.. .   - --   The truth is Zulpha Khan l ied  in her af f idavi t  and 15 

she l ied in court .   Expla in that.  

 M'Lord,  do you wish to take the lunch break now?  

COURT:  No.  Ja we're not ,  we're not going into argument.   

Please just  give me the reference there in the. ..         

MR KAHANOVITZ:  That 's page 67 under the “Graphical(?) 20 

Pinocchio”.   Then the reference . . . ( intervent ion)  

COURT:  The page 67 of  what?         

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Of  the respondent 's bundle .   Page 68 is 

about the “ ly ing I r ishman, O'Rei l ly  & Associates ” ,  which is  

what he cal ls Independent. . .  25 
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COURT:  Yes.      

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I t 's  h is descr ipt ion of  Independent 

Newspapers and then on the same page is the,  that  we are the 

“D F Malan organisat ion” ,  a l ternat ively known as “Lobotomedia 

24”.   - --   I t 's  supposed to be “Mediocri ty 24”.  5 

COURT:  Alr ight ,  we wi l l  take  the adjournment.   You remain 

under oath.  

COURT ADJOURNS  (at 16:05)  

COURT RESUMES (at 14:42) 

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  you're st i l l  under oath.  10 

DAVID ROBERT LEWIS:  (s.u.o.)  

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR KAHANOVITZ (CONTINUED) :  

Alr ight ,  I  want to move on to your conten t ion that  you were 

discr iminated against  as a Jew and you cla im that  you were 

prevented f rom observing the Jewish Sabbath.  ---   Right 15 

(speaking in an undertone).  

 Correct?  ---   Right .  

 Okay.   Now you agree with me that  i f  one actual ly appl ies 

Jewish law,  the Orthodox Jews have to observe the Sabbath in 

a part icular way?  ---   H'm.. .  20 

 There are actual ly ru les?  ---   Yes,  there are ru les.  

 Ja and there 's a d ist inct ion made between those Jews 

who are observant Jews and those who are not and.. .   - --   

Excuse me, i t 's  –  i t 's  a b i t  of  an oxymoron.  

 Real ly?  - --   H'm, the pract ice of  Judaism is not  sole ly 25 
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bound up with law.  I t 's  a lso bound up with customs and 

tradi t ions.  

 No I  don' t  d isagree with you.  ---   Right .  

 But. . .   - --   So the –  the general  pract ices are actual ly 

customs of  the community as such.  5 

 But there are,  i f  you are Orthodox, then there is a 

part icular set of  views about how.. .   - --   Right .  

 . . .an observant Orthodox Jew would observe the 

Sabbath.   ---   Right ,  h 'm I  –  I  don' t  maintain that I 'm an 

observant Orthodox Jew.  My views are more in l ine with 10 

Reform or Progressive Judaism.  I  come f rom an Orthodox 

background. 

 But I 'm assuming you're not  going to d isagree with me 

that  when i t  comes to people c la iming that  working on the 

Sabbath would of fend a  centra l  p i l lar or tenant of  their  15 

re l igious bel ief . . .   - --   Right .  

 Then the kind of  Jew that  would have.. . ,  a basis were 

made in that  c la im, is one who is indeed observant?  ---   

H'm.. . ,  not.  

 I f  you don' t  observe the Sabbath. . .   - --   Sorry?  I f  I . . . ,  20 

what are you saying?  

 I f  you don' t  observe the Sabbath you cannot come 

along.. .   - --   No. 

 And cla im that  i t  would discr iminate . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   

No you see, no.   Sorry,  sorry.  25 
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COURT:  Just  wait .   Mr Lewis,  p lease let  h im f in ish his 

quest ion.   ---   Sorry,  a lr ight .             

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I f  you come along and say,  “ I  do not 

observe the Sabbath,  but  i f  –  you're d iscr iminat ing against  me 

by not a l lowing me to observe the Sabbath”,  a l l  you are is a 5 

hypocri te.   ---   H'm, I  don' t  bel ieve I 'm saying that  I 'm –  that 

I 'm not observant.  

 No, no I 'm not asking you about you.  ---   Ja i f . . .  

 I 'm asking you as a general  proposit ion.   ---   I  d is. . .  

 Do you disagree with my general  proposit ion?  ---   H'm, I  10 

guess so.   I  –  I . . .   I  would probably seek guidance on tha t , on 

that  issue. 

 And also just  as a general  proposit ion,  i f  a non -observant 

Jew trades on the genuine bel iefs of  observant Jews for their 

own personal gain,  then that  would be fundamental ly immoral.   15 

---   H'm, you're making an assumpt ion as to what Judai sm is.    

 I 'm just asking you.  I 'm not asking you about you, I 'm 

just ,  I  mean...   - --   No, I  –  I  hear you.  

 Just  assess the moral . . .   - --   I  –  I  –  as a general  

pr incip le. . .  20 

 As a general  pr incip le.   ---   You're assuming that  a l l  Jews 

are the same? 

 No, I 'm not assuming anything.   ---   Well . . .  

 In fact ,  I 'm assuming the contrary.   Al l  Jews are not  the 

same.  ---   You.. .   You see the –  you're assuming that there 's 25 
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only one way in which to observe Shabbat .  

 No, I 'm not assuming that  e i ther.   What I 'm putt ing to you 

is there are Jews who have genuine bel iefs about observing 

the Sabbath in a part icular way.  -- -   H'm. 

 I f  you are not  one of  those Jews.. .   - --   Right .  5 

 . . .you should not  latch onto the bel iefs of  those Jews if  

you don' t  actual ly observe their  bel i efs and cla im that you are 

being discr iminated against i f  you are not  being given the 

lat i tude.   Let 's put  i t  that  way.   ---   I  actual ly,  r ight ,  I  –  I  don' t  –  

I  don' t  actual ly see your point.  10 

 You don't  see the point?  ---   No. 

 Alr ight .   Wel l  i t  would boi l  down to something fa ir ly,  I  

mean fa ir ly s imple.   I f  you go to your employer and say,  “ I  

need to have Saturday mornings of f  because I 'm Jewish”,  

surely your employer could ask you:  Are you an observant 15 

Jew?  ---   H'm r ight  and the. . .  

 Because not every Jew,  you've already pointed out not 

every Jew needs to take Saturday morning of f .   - --   Right ,  and 

the –  and the problem that  I  have is –  is  that  that  answer has 

already been given by yourselves.   You've already determined 20 

that  I 'm not Jewish,  according to some weird system that  you 

have that  d iscr iminates against  me.  

 I  don' t  understand what you're ta lk ing about that .. .   - --   

You've –  you've –  your –  the. . .   Your c l ient  has already on –  by 

h is  own standards or h is own systems has already excluded 25 
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me f rom the –  f rom the community.   He's a lready 

excommunicated me f rom my own rel igion.   There was no 

at tempt to –  to get  a –  some kind of  expert  or Human 

Resources didn' t  even bother to do any research.  

 Well  my cl ient has,  on the facts my cl ient  has a very 5 

s imple answer to your case, is that  there was never any 

discussion with you in which you ever ra ised a problem that 

you had about your working hours and cla im that  i t  impacted 

on your abi l i ty to pract ice your Judaism.   ---   We –  we had a, 

r ight .   We had a conversat ion at  length at  the evaluat ion 10 

meet ing as to whether or not  I  might be contradict ing myself  as 

a Jew. 

 Well ,  I  just  need to put  i t  to you that they say that there 's 

no such conversat ion ever took place.   ---   Was.. .  

 Why would i t  take place at  the evaluat ion meet ing,  Mr 15 

Lewis?  -- -   You've made a whole bunch of  spurious 

al legat ions.   You've –  you've even gone so far as to a l lege that 

my Judaism is an invent ion.   You've gone so far as to a l lege 

that  Robbie Jansen, the art ic le is an invent ion.   I  mean, ho w 

far do you –  are you real ly ,  expect me to –  to even bel ieve 20 

you? 

 I t 's  not  about me, Mr Lewis.   I  just put  what my cl ient 

te l ls me to you , to test  the t ruth of  your version.   ---   Well ,  I ' l l  

put  i t  to you that  –  that  your c l ient has an authori tar ian dogm a 

that  is for some reason a result  of  the N G Kerk and so forth.  25 



MR KAHANOVITZ 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

192 D R LEWIS 

 

05.11.2009/14:42-15:46/EdB / . . .  

 I  know that. . . ,  yes.  

COURT:  Wel l  le t  h im answer,  Mr Kahanovitz.           

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Sorry,  sorry M'Lord.   ---   So your –  your 

c l ient  has an authori tar ian dogma.  I t 's  a dogmat ic d iscou rse 

that  –  that  stems from an oppressive,  h 'm, system.  I t 's –  i t 's  a 5 

heret ical  form of  –  of  what is known as the,  as the Reformed 

Protestant  bel ief .   The Afr ikanervolk ,  you know, you obey the 

Afr ika  –  Afr ikaner  is  above everyone else.  

 Would you agree with me that  i f  they were going to 

d iscr iminate against  you as a Jew by insist ing that  you worked 10 

hours that  conf l icted with your re l igious bel iefs,  I  mean 

logical ly i t  seems to me there would need to be a discussion .   

---   Right  and I  –  I  don' t  have any conf l ict  wi th working on a 

Saturday morning.  I 've –  I 've –  that has been the status quo.  

That is the custom and tradi t ion in this country.  15 

 But you've already.. . ,  sorry.   -- -   I 'm not an ul tra -

Orthodox Jew.   The ul t ra-Orthodox Jews would have a 

problem. 

 You've already conceded yesterday. . .   - --   Right .  

 That there was never a d iscussion where you actual ly sat 20 

down and said to them:  The hours that I  am required to work 

on a Fr iday night  detract f rom my abi l i ty to pract ice my fa i th.   

- --   Right .   The –  the problem wi th th is is that you don't  

actual ly have a –  a bona f ide  contract set t ing out  those 

working hours.   I t  hasn' t  –  there 's been no agreement as such.  25 
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 On your –  on the version that  you're putt ing up now 

you're saying that  the t ime that th is issue was  in fact 

d iscussed was at  the meet ing where you say you were 

dismissed.  ---   Yes and –  and i t  seems to be your content ion 

that s ince I  d idn't  br ing up that  matter with regard to the 5 

Saturday and –  and the one-on-one meet ing,  that s ince I  –  I  

seem to have now, I 've given carte b lanche to the  company 

that –  that 's. . . ,  ja .  I f  –  i f  I  don' t  work on a Saturday morning, 

sorry i f  I  work on a Saturday morning that  somehow excludes 

me f rom Shabbat .   I 'm not.. .   I  don' t  see the logic.  10 

 Well  I 'm just  a lso –  I  need to  point  out  to you that  your 

version made your c la im i l logical  because what happens on 

now on your version is you have a discussion about the hours 

conf l ict ing with your fa i th  and that 's your last  day of  work.   So 

how.. .?  You didn' t  work af ter that .   ---   (W itness chuckles).  15 

 So your hours could not  have been conf l icted with your 

fa i th.   ---   Right  I  got ,  ja.  Wel l  I ,  th is –  I  –  I  real ly seek 

protect ion f rom the Court  f rom th is k ind of  d iscr imination.   I t 's 

–  i t  is  so prejudic ia l .   

 H'm.. .  20 

COURT:  Sorry,  I  d idn' t  understand your answer.   ---   H'm.. .    

 The quest ion was put to you that  your . . . ( intervent ion)     

- --   The, about the. . .   The quest ion is being put to me that 

s ince the discussion resulted in my dismissal,  that  I 've got  no 

grounds for quest ioning the dismissal.  25 
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 No, no on the contrary,  I  thought the quest ion was the 

discussion at  which the issue of  your Jewish,  your conf l ict  wi th 

the Shabbat . . .   - --   Right .  

 Was on your last day which was the day 30 May.  ---   

Right .  5 

 Which was the day of  the evaluat ion meet ing.   Now.. .   - --   

I t  –  i t  doesn' t  seem to fo l low that –  that  s ince the –  the 

company react ion or pol icy to Shabbat  on a Fr iday conf l icts for 

some reason with the pol ic ies of  the company and I  was let  go, 

that  that sort  of  derogates f rom my own b el iefs.  I  don' t  see the 10 

logic.                 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  The logic is s imple,  Mr Lewis.   I f  such a 

pol icy existed,  which we deny and we also deny that  there was 

any such discussion,  but  be that as i t  may, even on your own 

version i t  could never have impacted upon you because you 15 

weren' t  working there anymore.   ---   H'm, there were two 

occasions in which the deadl ine was extended by Annel ien 

Dean f rom twelve o 'c lock to 4:30 in the –  p.m. 

 Yes in c ircum . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   And as a result . . .  

 Sorry.   ---   Yes and as a result  I  was forced to –  to work 20 

into the Sabbath.   I  have a problem with working into the –  in to 

Fr iday night  Shabbat .  

 You describe yoursel f ,  page 55 of  the respondent 's 

bundle,  your referra l  to the CCMA.   You say: 

“Al though I  am f rom  an Orthodox background  I consider 25 
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“myself  a secular Jew. ”  

- --   Right .     

COURT:  Sorry,  55 of . . .?     

MR KAHANOVITZ:  55.. .  

COURT:  Of what bundle?        5 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Of  the respondent 's bundle.   I t 's  the 

annexure to the 7/11(?) ( indist inct –  not  c lose to microphone).  

---   H'm.. .   Can I  respond to that?  

COURT:  Yes, yes of  course.   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Please, that 's why I 'm putt ing i t  to you.  ---   10 

Yes.  I t 's in point 3.3 of  my response to amendment.   I t  should 

be in the pleadings.   I  can f ind the page.  

 I  have just  a s imple and now my understand.. .   - --   I t 's  a 

s imple response.  No, th is is a s imple response.  

 Yes.   ---   Just ice Dennis Davis at  a recent L immud 15 

conference in Johannesburg quoted Rabbi Zvi  Yehuda Kook, 

the f i rst  chief  rabbi of  Israel  who bel ie ved that  Judaism rests 

on three pi l lars.  

 Sorry,  what page are you on now?  ---   H'm, th is was –  

where is the pleadings?   H'm.. .   Response to amend... ,  81 to 20 

114. 

COURT:  Of the pleadings?  ---   Yes.           

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Ah, you're at  page 93?  ---   93,  ja.  

 Of the pleadings by paragraph 33.3.   ---   Right .    

“Judaism rests on three pi l lars,  the Orthodox, the secular 25 
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“and the Reform.  Remove one of  the pi l lars and the 

whole ecology is d isturbed.  In a sense Judaism is an 

ecosystem, not a code of  laws.”  

 Well ,  one of  my understandings of  the di f ference between 

secular and what some people cal l  observant is that  secular 5 

Jews do not require synagogue at tendance for observance  of  

the Orthodox laws about the Sabbath as being an intr insic part 

of  their  fa i th.   ---   H'm, that 's –  that 's your opin ion.  

 No i t 's  not my opinion,  i t 's . . .   - --   You're not  an expert .  

 I t 's  what d ist inguishes the secular f rom the observant.    10 

---   I t  doesn' t  make them not Jewish.   

 I 'm not even beginning to suggest that  i t  makes them n ot 

Jewish.   They pract ice their  re l igion in a d if ferent  way.  -- -   

And the issue –  the issue isn ' t  the halakhah  as such, i t 's  the 

customs and tradi t ions of  the Jewish fa i th.    15 

 But Mr Lewis. . .   - --   The same way you're saying you 

would –  you're arguing tha t  i f  a Christ ian for instance doesn' t  

go to a service,  a Christmas service that  –  and that  they at tend 

Christmas, that  they're not  Christ ian.   

 No, a l l  I 'm putt ing to you is that for certa in k inds of  Jews, 20 

whether they do or don' t  for example work on the S abbath or 

whether they do or don' t  l ight  Fr iday night  candles or whether 

they do or don' t  eat  crayf ish is not  for them a centra l  p i l lar of  

their  fa i th.   ---   Sorry,  excuse me, i t 's  not  up to you to decide.  

 I t 's  not  something I  am decid ing,  Mr Lewis.   ---   I t 's . . .   25 
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 I t 's  general  knowledge about.. . ,  i t 's a point  you make 

yoursel f  in your documentat ion.  ---   I t 's  a recommended, i t 's  a 

quest ion of  the recommended course of  act ion versus the 

obl igat ions according to the halakhah  in  terms of  the 613 

mitzvot .   There 're 39, h 'm, melacha  –  melachot ,  39 melachot .   5 

The Judaism looks at  the melacha  in  terms of  gezerot  and 

to ledot .   So you would need an expert .  

 Are you suggest ing that  i t  d iscr iminates against  every 

k ind of  Jew i f  they have to work on a Fr iday night?  ---   H'm, 

I 'm.. .   Every k ind of  Jew?  10 

 Yes.  ---   God.   

 Well  you've already pointed out that  you don' t  feel  that i t  

would discr iminate against  you as a Jew to work on a 

Saturday.   You could l ive with that.   ---   I  can l ive with that .  

 Okay.  Wel l ,  you must then accept that  there are Jews 15 

who can l ive with working on a Fr iday night  as wel l .   - --   H'm.. .   

 They don' t  regard i t  as d iscr iminat ion.   ---   Yes but they –  

those Jews aren' t  me, are they?   The –  Judaism is not  a 

monol i th ic re l igion.   There 's no esse nt ia l  dogma or. . .   I  can 

f ind. . .  20 

 Mr Lewis,  there may not be monol i thic and i t  may not be 

dogmat ic,  but  whatever i t  is ,  you can' t  just  make i t  up as you 

go along.   ---   Right  and I  can prove to the Court  that  my views 

are pret ty –  very much in –  in  the same vein as Progressive 

Judaism. 25 
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 Are you a member of  the Progressive Jewish community?  

Do you at tend their  synagogue?  -- -   H'm yes,  I  do.  I  a lso 

at tend Orthodox Gardens Shul just  for sake of  convenience.  

 Because elsewhere in the documentat ion you descri be 

yoursel f  as being a “mult i - fa i th” person.  ---   H'm, I  don' t  th ink 5 

that 's what I  said, d id I?  

 Well ,  you did.   ---   I  come f rom –  my mother was an 

Angl ican and she converted,  so there is an issue of  mult i - fa i th.  

 The let ter that  you wrote. . .   - --   What's the fa i th.. .  

 . . . to the Cape Jewish Board  of  Deput ies,  page 66 of  10 

respondent 's bundle.   ---   Right ,  r ight .  

 Maybe you should just  read that  letter into the record.      

- --   Sorry,  perhaps we can just  sort  of  for the record,  the –  i t 's 

the Cape, sorry,  Board of  Jewish Deput ies.. .  

 Sorry,  the South Af r ican Jewish Board of  Deput ies.   ---   15 

Just  they. . . ,  they're not  a re l igious organisat ion.   They're a 

community-based organisat ion.  They service the community 

on var ious issues.  

 I 'm not having a . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   I t 's  not  a. . . ,  you 

know i f  th is was a let ter of  correspondence between me and 20 

the Beth Din I  would –  i t  would be a di f ferent  –  of  a d i f ferent 

order.  

 I  just  want you to read . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   This is not a 

–  th is is not  correspondence betwe en for instance myself  and –  

and a rabbi,  i t 's  correspondence between me and a Jewish 25 
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community organisat ion.  

 Now what d i f ference would that  make as to the way in 

which you presented your views?  - - -   I t 's  just  you're t ry ing to 

ra ise an issue as i f  th is i s a –  some kind of  letter with a 

re l igious structure.  I t 's  not  the Beth Din.    5 

COURT:  Just  what page is i t?     

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord, i t 's  pages 61 to 62 of  the bundle.   

Or maybe I can read the. ..  

COURT:  2. . .   - --   Sorry which?  Your bundle?  

 61 to –  which bundle?      10 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Of  respondent 's bundle.  

COURT:  I 've got  a let ter addressed to Gwynne Robins.            

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.  

COURT:  Is that . . .?        

MR KAHANOVITZ:  That is the,  she is. . .   - --   Right  h 'm.. . ,  and 15 

i t 's  in response to a le t ter that  I  received f rom Gwynne. 

 You' l l  see there 's a . . . ( intervent ion)  ---   So there –  there 

is a –  you can't  just  read one let ter.   I t 's  the response to a 

let ter.  

COURT:  Wel l  you can...   - --   There are let ters in my –  in  my 20 

bundle.  

 Mr Lewis,  i f  you wanted the other let ters to be read in, 

then al l  you need to do is just  say so.   ---   Alr ight .  

 And wi l l  you just  wait  for the quest ion?  There 's a let ter.  

I t 's  going to be read into the record and then you might say i t 's  25 
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out  of  context ,  in which case the n you can put i t  in  context.  

You wi l l  be given an opportuni ty,  but  p lease stop interrupt ing 

l ike th is.   ---   ( Inaudible).  

 Mr Kahanovitz.      

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Mr Lewis,  th is is a let ter that  was in your  5 

possession which you did not  d iscover for purposes of  these 

proceedings,  correct?  ---   Sorry,  th is let ter was.. .?  

 You had th is let ter in your possession and i t  perta ins 

direct ly to th is case.  You did not  make i t  avai lable as one of  

the documents.   ---   I t 's  conf ident ia l .   I t 's  a conf ident ia l  let ter.  10 

 Conf ident ia l  doesn' t  apply,  Mr Lewis.   You're supposed to 

make avai lable a l l  documents that  are re levant for the 

determinat ion of  the t ruth.   ---   I  don' t  see i t  as any –  having 

any re levance.  

 You're st i l l  now, you're even prepared to point  f ingers 15 

and say:   Wel l ,  where is the –  where is the let ter that  I  was 

replying to?  ---   Right .  

 You have that  letter.   ---   Wel l  i t 's . . .  

 You want to make i t  avai lable,  make i t  avai lable.   ---   

Well  I  –  I  th ink I  should.   I t 's  on page.. . ,  page 40 of  my bundle, 20 

let ter f rom Jewish Board of  Deput ies.    

COURT:  Page 40?  ---   40 ja.   

 Of your bundle?  ---   That 's r ight .  

 And... ,  the f i rst  bundle.        

MR KAHANOVITZ:  For purposes of  the record,  M'Lord,  then 25 
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th is is part  1 of  the appl icant 's bundle.   I t 's  a let ter f rom the 

South Af r ican Jewish Board of  Deput ies,  a deputy d irector 

Gwynne Robins to David Lewis,  dated 24 Apri l  2007.  Now Mr 

Lewis,  the fact  that  you have that  let ter in your bundle that  you 

didn' t  make avai lable,  your reply,  to the Court . . .   - --   What?  5 

Now you make,  no.  

 You've select ively chosen which documents you wish to 

show to the Court .   - --   No.  I 've  –  I 've made i t  avai lable 

because you –  you've gone and taken the t rouble to make my 

documents avai lable to the Court .   I  don' t  see any need to 10 

reproduce the informat ion. 

 Mr Lewis. . .   -- -   You've assisted me, thank you very 

much. 

 Well ,  you are no doubt aware that  there 's an of fence 

cal led perjury.   You understand what perjury is?  ---   I  don't  15 

see the re levance.  

 Well  the re levance is,  is i f  you come to court  and  te l l  l ies 

i t 's  a cr iminal of fence.  ---   Are you accusing me of  lying?  

 Yes.  ---   Why? 

 Because in the let ter which you withheld form the Court . . .   20 

---   Excuse me, I  didn' t  wi thhold any let ter.   I  presented i t .  

 No, the let ter which you withheld is at  our bundle page 

61.  ---   Yes,  you assisted me in provid ing.   I  d idn' t  have –  i t  

was an emai l  document that  you dug up somehow, r ight?  And 

you're present ing i t  as evidence.  I 've presented the –  the 25 
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corresponding let ter,  the document.  

 Now wel l  le t 's move on then to. . .   - --   Ja no i t 's . . .  

 I  hear what you have to say.   Let 's move on to what you 

said in the let ter.   For purposes of  the record the word 

Shabbat  is  spelt  S-h-a-b-b-a-t .   Page 62 you say the fo l lowing 5 

in your let ter to Gwynne Robins:  

“Whi le I  have  great  af f in i ty with my fe l low co-rel igionists, 

I  f ind i t  d if f icul t  to maintain a Jewish ident i ty s ince I  have 

a mult i - fa i th family and re lat ives drawn f rom various 

fa i ths.   Furthermore,  as a student of  comparat ive re l igion 10 

I  f ind t ruth in a l l  of  the earth 's major fa i ths.   I  am 

however what one could cal l  a phi lo -Semite. . . ”  

And i t 's  spelt  p -h- i - l -o S-e-m-i- t -e.  

“ . . .as Mi l ton Sha in , ”  S -h- i -n(sic) ,  “would have i t ,  some-

body who ei ther sel f - ident if ies or is ident if ied by others 15 

as a Jew.  Furthermore,  my case is str ict ly speaking not 

about the Sabbath,  but  rather aspects of  labour law that  

involve discr iminat ion across the board by a company 

which has fa i led to make submissions to the TRC and 

which cont inues to maintain a form of  racia l  segregat ion  20 

in i ts newsrooms whi le advocat ing racia l  prof i l ing and 

conformat ion to racia l  stereotypes.   I  am not so much 

assert ing my rel igious or racia l  ident ity here as my ethnic 

heri tage in the context  of  a career in which I  crossed the 

colour l ine under apartheid,  worked for var ious struggle 25 



MR KAHANOVITZ 
C 8 8 / 2 0 0 7  

203 D R LEWIS 

 

05.11.2009/14:42-15:46/EdB / . . .  

“newspapers and have contract  f rom across the spectrum 

of  society.”  

That 's what you wrote.   ---   Right .  

 Well ,  your case as you so eloquent ly put i t  in your let ter,  

is  not  about the Sabbath,  i t 's  about looking for a p lat form to 5 

launch an a t tack against  Media 24.   ---   H'm.. .   I f  i t  p leases the 

Court ,  I  have a problem with the –  there 's a dual purpose here 

because on the one hand Jews are an ethnic minori ty.   On the 

other hand Judaism is a –  is  one of  the world 's major re l igions.   

So I  bel ieve we –  we're ta lk ing at  cross-purposes.   The 10 

respondent is br inging up a –  a correspondence between me 

and a Jewish community organisat ion,  not  a re l igious body.  I  

was grappl ing with th is issue because there was th is 

presumpt ion by Gwynne Robins that  the  issue was that  I 'd 

been forced to work on Saturdays and clear ly that  is not  the 15 

case.  So you know, i t 's  a quest ion of  my due r ights.   The case 

is about my due r ights as a Jew.  

 I t 's  not .   ---   Oh please. 

 In fact,  you ( indist inct) .   You went to the Jewis h Board of  

Deput ies demanding that  they take up the cudgels on your 20 

behalf .   - --   Right  and they don' t . . .  

 ( Indist inct) .   - --   Yes and they don' t  act  pro deo .  

 Would you have a problem with them not th inking that 

your case was a genuine one?  ---   No I 've got  a problem with 

them not act ing pro deo .  25 
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 I  want to. . .  

COURT:  Mr Kahanovitz,  before you, just  sorry,  I  seem to have 

lost  the let ter that 's. . .   The page 62 let ter. . . .        

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.  

COURT:  Is a response to th is. . .         5 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  To the let ter f rom, there 's a let ter f rom the 

deputy d irector at  page 40 of  the f i rst  part  of  appl icant 's 

bundle. 

COURT:  Ah, yes thank you , of  appl icant 's bundle.        

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.  10 

COURT:  Then just hold a second.       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I t 's ,  I  th ink what the witness is referr ing to 

may be something in the f i rst  sentence.  

“Dear David.   We bel ieve that you are f ight ing a case in 

the Labour Court  on the grounds of  d iscr iminat ion 15 

because you have been forced to work on Saturdays. ”  

- --   Right ,  which is c lear ly not  the case.  

 Well  i t 's  not  strange that  they might ment ion Saturdays 

because that  is in fact  the major part of  the Jewish Sabbath is 

Saturday.   ---   Right .   In fact  i t 's f rom a Fr iday evening unt i l  20 

Saturday,  Saturday evening sunset.  

 Yes you're r igh t ,  but  most of  the hours of  the Sabbath fa l l  

on the Saturday.   ---   But i t  begins on a Fr iday.  

 You are a 100% correct .   Just  to a lso state the obvious.  

You do not wear a yarmulke .   - --   Right ,  I  don' t  wear a kippot .   25 
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 And in fact  your hairstyle appears t o indicate that  you 

have.. . ,  I  don' t  know is i t  Buddhist  or Hare Krishna or is i t  a 

fashion statement?  What is i t?  ---   What would you do i f  you 

were a bald –  balding 40-year o ld?  Do you.. .? 

 I  don' t  know, Mr Lewis.   The only reason I  ask you is you 5 

can say that  i t  has no reference to any re l igious af f i l ia t ion and 

then I  wi l l . . .   - --   My hair ,  no my hairsty le has no re levance to 

any re l igious anything.  

 You made various cla ims about d iscr iminat ions against 

Musl ims and Is lamic cul ture.   I f  I  understand i t  correct ly you're 10 

not proceeding wi th those cla ims?  Because when the Judge 

asked you.. .   - --   H'm they've kind of  been subsumed.  I t 's  just 

the general  problems that  I  had with the content management.  

These are just some of  the issues that  arose in the n ewsroom. 

 M'Lord,  I 'm going to assume that they are not part  of  th is 15 

case anymore. I f  I  can' t  make such assumpt ion,  unfortunately 

I ' l l  need to cross-examine the witness.   ---   No i t 's . . . ,  whatever.   

I t  –  i t  doesn' t  seem that  there 's any point  in pursuing t hem. 

COURT:  So I  take that you're not  pursuing i t?  ---   H'm.. .  

 For the purposes of  th is case.   ---   I 'm not pursuing the 20 

issue.  I t 's  just a –  the –  the –  those events d id actual ly occur.  

I t 's  just  an example of  some of  the problems encountered on a 

–  on a community newspaper.         

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Wel l  M'Lord,  so I 'm not sure what to do 

now because they didn' t . . .  25 
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COURT:  He says that  he's. . . ,he says that  he's not .   I t 's  no 

point .   No...  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  He's not  pursuing that .   I  just  p lace i t  on 

record that  we dispute his ent i re version about the –  whatever 

events he said occur in re lat ion to whether i t 's  a h istory of  5 

s lavery or refusal or –  to publ ish ,  what 's i t ,  mater ia l deal ing 

with Is lamic art  exhib i t ions.   I  want to then proceed to deal 

with your. . .   No sorry,  before I  do so I  need to correct  

something that  I  put  to you earl ier.   Apparent ly I  put i t  to you 

that  Annel ien Dean phoned Sedrick Tal jaard af ter you had 10 

sworn at  her when you had had the discussion about the 

Robbie Jansen.  ---   H'm. 

 Her version is that  she phoned Mr Charles,  not Mr 

Tal jaard.   Is that  r ight?  Sorry,  the other way round?   

DISCUSSION ASIDE         15 

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Oh sorry,  apparent ly I  put i t  to you that she 

contacted both Mr Tal jaard and Mr Charles.   The correct 

version is that  she contacted Mr Tal jaard.   Look,  I  just  must 

put  that  to you and you can comment.   You weren' t  there.  ---  

So are you asking me where –  where I  was when Annel ien 20 

phoned Tal jaard? 

 No, I 'm just  –  need to correct  something that  I  put  to you 

because what I  put  to you was factual ly inaccurate.   ---   H'm, 

I 've got  absolute ly no way of  knowing what had transpired 

between the two of  them.  25 
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 And the other th ing I  need to put to you is that  Annel ien 

Dean doesn' t  come f rom Bloemfontein.   ---   H 'm.. .   The, a l l  I  

had is –  is  what she to ld me at  the t ime.  I 've got  –  I  don't  

have any pr ior knowledge.  I t 's  between her and her own god 

( indist inct) .  5 

 Well ,  why would she te l l  you she comes f rom Bloem -

fontein i f  she doesn' t  come f rom Bloemfontein?  ---   I 've got  

absolute ly no idea why she would change her test imony.  

 Alr ight ,  now you cla im that  you were dismissed without a 

hearing on 30 June and.. .   Sorry,  not  the 30 t h . . .   You were 10 

dismissed on 30 May.  Why do you say you were dismissed?    

---   (W itness sighs).   Wel l . . .     

 And I  ask you that in the context  that  we know you had a 

contract  that  was expir ing a month later.   ---   Oh Jesus no, 

h 'm, i t 's  just  a –  a problem with term –  terminology.   The law 15 

makes provis ion for a d ismissal.   The problem with the law as 

i t  stands is that  you –  you're supposed to make an appl icat ion 

with in one month.   The respondent took such a long t ime 

complying with my –  the correspondence and requests for the 

contract that  that  term actual ly expi red and I  wasn' t  prepared 20 

to r isk a –  a lengthy condonat ion procedure with –  wi th the 

respondent ra is ing object ions.  

 I 've got  absolute ly no idea what you're ta lk ing about.   ---   

So the –  the –  what I 'm saying is,  is that  the case, however 

way you look at i t  the –  whether i t  was a unfair  d ismissal or 25 
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fa i lure to renew contract  of  employment for a –  a prohib i ted 

reason, the issue is,  is that  there was discr iminat ion.  

 I  just  want to put  i t  to you that you were actual ly never 

d ismissed.  Al l  that  happened was you were to ld that you 

would be paid out  unt i l  your contract expired and you must not 5 

come to work.   - - -   Right  and you don' t  have a –  there 's no 

legi t imate contract.  

 That too, okay,  but  why is i t  that  you pleaded .. .   - --   So 

how do you, how are you –  how is. . .   How is i t ,  sorry how is i t  

possib le to even make any of  these spurious al legations and 10 

cla ims without the presence of  a –  of  a bona f ide  contract  of  

employment?  You're presuming that  there 's actual ly a bona 

f ide  contract .   There was an employment re lat ionship between 

me and the respondent.  

 Alr ight .   I  don' t  intend to argue with you about that.   I ' l l  15 

argue about i t  at  the end of  the case if  need be.   What I  do 

need to deal with is your c la im that  you had an expectat ion 

that  the contract  would be renewed.  ---   Right .  

 I  f ind that  very d i f f icul t  to bel ieve because your own 

test imony is that  at  the evaluat ion meet ing they to ld you or you 20 

understood that  they were extremely unhappy wi th your 

performance.  You recal l  your evidence yesterday?  - --   H'm, 

so what is your point?  

 Well  how.. .?  You know they're not  happy with your work.  

You know that  the edi tor has now spiked two of  your art ic les.   25 
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- --   Right .    

 You know there 's been a complaint  about your abi l i ty to 

subedit  copy.   ---   H'm, r ight .  

 How could you have a real ist ic expectat ion that  they'r e 

going to of fer you a new contract?  ---   H'm, I  would have 5 

thought that  there would have been some kind of  d iscip l inary 

process.   We're talk ing about my –  my, you know, my abi l i ty to  

earn a l iving,  my future prospects,  my career as a journal ist .   

This is  not  just  a –  sel l ing ice-cream cones.    The –  the. ..  

 Yes,  can you answer the quest ion that  I  put  to you?  ---   I  10 

–  I  bel ieve there was a reasonable prospect of  a renewal of  the 

contract .  I  was –  I  was made promises by Warren Charles with 

regard to the renewal  of  the contract.   In fact  I  th ink there was 

a –  a reasonable assumpt ion that  there would be actual ly a 

val id contract  between me and the –  the company and that  the 15 

company wouldn' t  expect me to do anything contrary to the 

Labour Relat ions Act.  

 But you yoursel f  are,  let 's assume that  you arr ived on 

day 1 and on day 1 you thought that there was a chance or a 

good chance or a fantast ic chance, whatever,  that  your 20 

contract  was going to be renewed.  ---   Right .   I  would be 

faced with a s imi lar problem if  I  arr ived.. .  

 Sorry,  can I  f in ish the quest ion?  ---   Yes.  

 And then i t  becomes clear that  the re lat ionship is not 

going to work out .   How can you have a reasonable 25 
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expectat ion of  renewal in c ircumstances where fa ir ly short ly 

into the contract the re lat ionship between the part ies has 

broken down?  ---   H'm, no I  –  I  actual ly don' t  see that .  The –  

I  was what. . .  

 But you your. . .   Sorry,  sorry I 've interrupted you.  ---   So 5 

you're saying that  there was a breakdown of  –  in  terms of  the 

re lat ionship,  between me and the company? 

 Well  there clear ly was a breakdown in the re lat ionship.   

- --   I  don' t  bel ieve that  because  I don' t  th ink I  would have 

made an appointment to see Rashid Lombard if  I  d idn' t  th ink 10 

that  there were reasonable prospects.    

 But even on your  own, forget about what my cl ients have 

to say,  on your own version you've said that  i f  you had 

known.. .   - --   Right  that 's in. . .  

 Excuse me.. .   - --   Right ,  h indsight  ja.  15 

 I f  you had known that  they engage in racia l  prof i l ing and 

i f  you had known that  they  had not been to the Truth and 

Reconci l ia t ion Commission you would never want to work for 

these people?  ---   H'm, i f  I  had known that  when these 

obstacles such as racia l  prof i l ing were encountered in the 20 

workplace and that  there were –  would be no opportuni ty to 

rect i fy the issues through some kind of  a edi tor ia l  process or 

even a discip l inary,  even you know,  basic –  basic condit ions.  

Had I  known that  I  don' t  bel ieve I  would have sought 

employment at  such a company.  25 
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 Well  by the t ime you say you had th is expectat ion of  

renewal you knew al l  these th ings.   I  can' t  see how even on 

your own version. . .   - --   No you are,  no,  no i t 's  a –  i t 's  a 

problem with the way the case is la id out .   I t  doesn' t  ref lect  the 

t rue chronology of  the course of  events.  5 

 Well ,  when did you have th is expectat ion?  ---   I  had the 

reasonable expectat ion on day 1.   I  was.. .  

 And did you st i l l  have th is reasonable expectat ion on the 

day of  your evaluat ion meet ing?  ---   I  –  I  thought that  the –  

there was ample experience in the company to  deal with any 10 

conf l icts that  might ar ise.   I  don' t  th ink anyone was, what 's the 

word?  I  don' t  th ink anyone was, h'm.. . ,  not  aware of  that  –  

that  there would be such obstacles,  that  such obstacles would 

present themselves.   This was a process of  nat ion bu i ld ing, 

reconci l ia t ion and so on.  That was the –  the general gist  of  15 

the propaganda issues by the company i tsel f .  

 Any reasonable person though, i f  they went to a meet ing 

which terminated with them swearing at  the employer,  would 

hardly th ink that .. .   - --   H'm, I  don't  bel ieve I  actual ly swore 

at . . .   I  d idn' t  have much of  an opportuni ty to –  to real ly 20 

respond, you know.  (W itness chuckles).   I t 's  a presumpt ion 

that  you're making.  

 The ant i -Semit ic cartoons that  you've put into the bundle, 

what do you want the Court to do with them?  I  mean, why 

have you included them?  ---   There 're two –  two cartoons.  25 
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One .. . ( intervent ion)  

 No, p lease don' t  take me through the cartoons.  ---   

Alr ight .  

 I  just  want to know the general  proposit ion or what 

they're doing there.   ---   Yes,  they are evidence of  the 5 

company's d isreputable past  and a fa i l  –  their  fa i lure to deal 

with –  wi th the fact  that they cont inue to oppose nat ion 

bui ld ing and reconci l ia t ion.   They.. .  

 But they're f rom a publ icat ion cal led The Owl.   ---   Sorry? 

 You photocopied them f rom Mil ton Shain 's book on ant i -10 

Semit ism.  ---   Oh no, no i t 's  the other. . .   Hang on, hang on 

you're –  there 're two sets of  –  of  cartoons.  

 Yes,  the one's f rom The Owl.   ---   Right .  

 From –  about the turn of  the century.   ---   Yes.  

 What are they doing in your bundle?  ---   H'm, they're 15 

evidence of  the ant i -Semit ism in th is country.   There 's a a lso a 

art ic le by I  th ink i t 's  Col in Bun t ing or Brian Bunt ing about the 

r ise of  the South Af r ican Reich. 

 Yes?  ---   Which detai ls the, essen t ia l ly the t ies that  D F 

Malan and various Naspers employees had with the Nazi 20 

Germany and the Nazi Party.  

 So.. .   - --   There 's a h istory of . . .  

 Now what must the Court  do with those cartoons?  ---   

H'm, i t 's  –  they should assume that  there 's a h istory of  racia l 

explo i tat ion and racia l  –  theories of  racia l  superior i ty on the 25 
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part  of  the corporat ion and that  those theories and ideologies 

are st i l l  prevalent .  

 I  suppose I  must put  th is to you.  I f  one had to fo l low 

your logic one would need to draw a l ine f ro m D F Malan, the 

Nazis,  Hendrik Verwoerd,  the Transvaler to for example 5 

whoever edi ts the Sowetan today?  Is that a. . .?  ---   I t ‟s  a –  i t 's 

a very interest ing hypothesis.  

 Yes wel l  i t 's  your –  i t 's  what you want the Court  to 

accept?  ---   Yes,  I  –  I  bel ieve i t  should be accepted by the 

Court .  10 

 Right ,  at  least we now understand that .   Another issue 

that  I  must put  to you that  came up was that ,  and also as to 

why you couldn' t  possib ly have had any expectat ion of  

renewal.   The editor adopted the view that  you couldn't  lay out 

properly.   Page 29 of  respondent 's bundle is an example.   Do 15 

you want to look at  page 29?  ---   I t 's  a fantast ic proposit ion 

but  the fact  is that  I  –  I 've got  extensive experience in 

publ ishing.  

 Well  so you cla im.   ---   Ja. 

 But they were  very surpr ised that  given your c la im of  20 

experience at the level  that  you cla im, that  you would produce  

work of . . .   - --   I t  was an isolate. . .   Right ,  we've been here 

before in my test imony under oath.   I t  was an isolated example 

wherein which late advert is ing held up product ion of  the –  of  

the page.  I t  is  a lso an example of  lack of  content.   So i t 's  an 25 
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issue of  content management.  

 Alr ight .   ---   The data l ine wasn' t  fast enough.   

 But i f  you were an editor and th is is the kind or qual i ty of  

work being produced by a member of  your staf f  you too would 

be concerned with what is at  page 29?  ---   H'm, sorry the –  5 

the. ..   Are we speaking about the r ight  –  same art ic le?    

COURT:  I t 's  page 29 in the respondent 's bundle.      

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Respondent 's bundle.   ---   So the –  sorry,  

the quest ion again?  

 I f  you were the edi tor and th is landed up on your screen 10 

as completed work,  you would have reason to be concerned to 

say the least .  ---   H'm r ight .   I f  –  i f  th is was something that 

cont inued to –  to occur I  might have reason for concern.  

 Well ,  even if  i t  occurred once you would have reason for 

concern because whoever is supposed to be doing th is is 15 

supposed to be a professional.   ---  H'm, i t 's  in –  wi th in the 

context  of  a –  the launch of  four new edit ions.   The ro l lout  of  a 

brand new newsroom in which the mechanics,  the –  the actual 

systems weren' t  funct ioning properly.   So the –  the systems 

weren' t  in  p lace.  The –  I  –  my evaluat ion report  actual ly 20 

br ings up the problem of  proof ing,  var ious issues.  

 Alr ight  page 32 is an art ic le that you uploaded onto the 

system.  ---   33, 34. . .  

 About Hotep Idr is Galeta (H-o-t -e-p I -d-r- i -s  G-a- l -e-t -a).   

---   Excuse me?  H'm, the author of  the page is A  Dean.   25 
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 No but she's not. . .   That ref lects who was on the system 

when i t  was pr inted out.   ---   The –  the problem.. .   

You were the author of  th is art ic le.   ---   I 'm not the author 

of  the art ic le.   I t  –  i t  c lear ly says there : 

“Author:   A Dean .   Date:   5/27/2006.  2:46:40 a.m.”  5 

The top you wi l l  see i t  says:  

“Document:   People 's Post ;   Reporter Enterta inment :  

DRL.”  

Stands for David Robert  Lewis.   -- -   Ja,  h 'm, ja that 's the data 

l ine. 10 

 Oh, so you deny that  you wrote th is art ic le?  ---   I 'm –  I 'm 

denying.   I  d id –  no,  not  in a mi l l ion years.   (Witness 

chuckles).  

 Tel l  us about th is. . .   You say there was a direct ive issued 

not to what,  ta lk about the struggle?  ---   Ja.  15 

 Who issued th is d irect ive?  ---   Sedrick Tal jaard.  

 In what form was i t  issued?  ---   He said:   Don' t  br ing up 

the struggle.   Don' t  br ing any of  that  negat ivi ty in the  

newsroom. 

 Is th is to you or to staf f?  ---   I  must –  th is is just  to me 20 

and I  must just  do whatever Annel ien te l ls me to do.  

 Oh and in what context  d id th is conversat ion occur?  ---   

H'm, in the context ,  there was a. . . ,  we'd just arr ived at 

People 's Post  and I  requested some kind of  edi tor ia l  direct ion 

with regard to the –  the content.  25 
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 Moving on to deal with your c la im that  you were a 

struggle journal ist  and the cla ims that  you make about your ro l l  

in  the l iberat ion struggle,  because one of  the in i t ia l  c laims that 

you brought was that  because of  the ro l l  that  you played in the 

l iberat ion struggle your salary was discr iminatory.   ---   H'm. 5 

 I ' l l  just  show you.  I t 's  at  page.. .   M'Lord,  i t 's  page 50...   

I t 's  respondent 's bundle page 55.  I ' l l  read i t  to yo u. 

“Discr iminat ion against  ant i -apartheid act ivists and 

struggle journal ists.    

I  bel ieve I  am being unfair ly d iscr iminated against ,  not 10 

only because of  my re l igious background, but  because of  

my history in the ant i -apartheid struggle and work for the 

struggle press.   Al though I  edi ted supplements for S outh, 

managed the product ion for an educat ion supplement in 

the New Nat ion,  a wri t ten copy for Grass roots,  Vrye 15 

Weekblad, Cape Times and Thisday, I  received an entry 

level  salary in a junior posi t ion. ”  

Just  expla in the logic in that.   ---   I t 's  roughly the same salary 

that  I  would have received working for S outh,  i f  there hadn' t  

been civi l  unrest .  20 

 So because you are,  I  don't  know i f  you cast  yoursel f  as 

a hero of  the l iberat ion struggle or someone who played a 

major ro le in l iberat ing South Af r ica f rom oppression,  but  your 

salary should have been higher in consequence?  ---   I  would 

have thought that i t  would have been more than what I  would 25 
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have received at  South.    

 So why didn' t  you re ject  the salary that  was of fered to 

you then if  i t  was beneath your digni ty?  ---   H'm gosh.. .   

They're –  they're very. . .   Media 24 is an extremely large 

organisat ion.   I t  was an entry –  entry into the organisat ion.   I  –  5 

I  d idn' t  have that  entry point  dur ing the struggle becaus e of  the 

discr iminat ion that I  experienced during the struggle,  so i t  was 

an opportuni ty that  presented i tself  as a result  of  nat ional 

reconci l ia t ion.   Had I  known that  national reconci l ia t ion had in 

ef fect fa i led I  wouldn' t  have sought such employment.  10 

 You say you were a member of  the United Democrat ic 

Front.   ---   Right .  

 How did one become a member of  the United Democrat ic 

Front?  ---   By jo in ing anyone of  the sister organisat ions  or 

af f i l ia tes.  15 

 Yes and which af f i l ia tes were you involved in?  ---   Oh 

gosh, End Conscript ion Campaign, Congress of  South Af r ican 

Wri ters,  h 'm that 's about i t .  

 How were you involved in the End Conscript ion 

Campaign?  ---   H'm.. .  20 

 Were you on an organising commit tee?  ---   I  wasn' t  on a 

–  on a commit tee.   I  was a close associa te of  Jonathan 

Handler who was one of  the CEOs.  

 Were you actual ly involved in the End Conscript ion 

Campaign?  ---   I  personal ly knew Cameron Dugmore and –  25 
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and Cameron .. . ( intervent ion)  

 You personal ly knew Cameron Dugmore?  ---   Cameron 

Dugmore is actual ly a personal f r iend of  mine.  

 Does that  make you involved in the End Conscript ion 

Campaign?  ---   Yes I  was also,  I  actual ly paid my dues and I  5 

a lso –  I  was a member of  the South Af r ican Union of  Jewish –  

Jewish Students.  

 Because I  must put  i t  to you that  the people in the End 

Conscript ion Campaign don' t  seem to have heard of  you.  ---   

Gosh.  ---   Wel l  you're ta lk ing rubbish.  10 

COURT:  Are you going to lead evidence on that ,  Mr. . .?         

MR KAHANOVITZ:  H'm? 

COURT:  You're not  going to lead evidence of .. .?        

MR KAHANOVITZ:  I 'm not going to lead evidence on that .   We 

know his comment.  15 

COURT:  Oh wel l  le t 's. . .   - --   You're ta lk ing rubbish.       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes alr ight .   Now you l ist  Aziz Hart ley as a 

reference on your CV.  ---   Right .  

 Are you not current ly facing assault  charges involving. . .?  

---   No, no.   Sorry.  20 

 No?  ---   No. 

 Were you facing assault  charges?  ---   H'm, there was a 

–  an incident between me and Aziz,  actual ly as a result  of  th is 

whole incident.  

 At  page 69.. .  25 
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COURT:  Of what?         

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Of  the respondent 's bundle one of  your 

b log entr ies you say,  the f i rst  paragraph, last  l ine:  

“Members of  the Cape Bar have chosen to str ip me of  

any protect ion af forded by the law. ”  5 

---   Right .  

 Where did the members of  the Cape Bar come  into th is?  

---   That 's Andrew Caiger.   

 Yes?  ---   Because of  h is opin ion I 've been denied legal 

insurance. 10 

 Oh I  see, a lr ight .   And then you say at  the end of  the last 

one: 

“ I  therefore intend suing the people of  South Af r ica.”  

I  might just do that.   

 Oh, a lr ight .   Another,  a theme in your col lect ive works is 15 

that  –  col lected works is that  everybody seems to have sold 

out  in the l iberat ion struggle except for you, including Nelson 

Mandela.   ---   Sure.   Where is th is?  

 This,  page 72.  ---   ( Indist inct)  documents.   

 The fourth paragraph f rom the top.   ---   Sorry,  20 

respondent 's bundle documents?  

 Yes.  ---   Which page? 

 Page 72. 

COURT:  What is th is document, Mr Kahanovitz?     

MR KAHANOVITZ:  This is one of  h is b log post ings in which he 25 
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says,  I 've just  read.. .  

COURT:  But th is is c lear,  so and RB69 is a lso a blog post ing , 

is i t?        

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Yes.   ---   Sorry,  what page? 

 M'Lord,  you' l l  see at  the bottom.. .  5 

COURT:  I t 's  RB72.  ---   RB?  I  don' t  have that .       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  The URL is :   

“davidrobert lewis.wordpress.com. ”  

- --   Sorry in which,  respondent 's bundle of  documents?  

 Yes, page 72.   ---   I  bel ieve I  was referr ing to the policy 10 

on.. .   Where was i t?  

 Well  the fourth paragraph is the sentence I 'm interested 

in.   You refer to Nelson Mandela 's autobiography, the Long 

Walk to Freedom.  ---   Ja.  

 And you say,  I  quote:  15 

“The Long Walk to Freedom might as wel l  be a history of  

the NNP... ”  

- --   No that 's. . .   

“ . . . for a l l  i t  exposes is the manner in which isolat ion 

created a paral le l  universe in which Mandel a was 20 

l i tera l ly(?)  brainwashed into ident ifying with h is ja i lers.”    

- --   Right .  

 So he is a lso a sel l -out?  ---   No i t 's  –  i t 's  h 'm, the 

problem is i t 's  the theory of  h istory is created by big –  b ig 

people.   From my experience the t ransi t ion occurred as a  25 
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resul t  of  a mass democrat ic struggle.   I t  wasn' t  just  one or two 

pol i t ic ians.   I t 's  very easy to fa l l  in to the hero worship.  

 Yes but that 's not what your sentence says.   ---   Oh. 

 You say Mandela was l i teral ly brainwashed into 

ident ifying.   ---   Ja wel l  he has,  hasn't  he?  He's ident if ied with 5 

the –  the Nat ional Party to the degree that  P W Botha was 

given a State,  l i tera l ly given a State funeral .   I 'd  a lso l ike to 

ra ise the issue of  the –  th is country's pol ic ies towards 

Myanmar and –  and Tibet  and various other p laces and China 

for instance, our China pol icy.  10 

 You wish to do so in th is courtroom?  ---   I t 's  just  in the –  

the context  of  that  remark about Mandela.   He's –  he 's very 

vocal about issues when i t  sui ts h im, but when i t  comes to 

atroci t ies i t 's  –  the same th ing is art iculated by Bishop 

Desmond Tutu.  I 'm not the only one.  15 

 M'Lord,  I  don't  have any further quest ions.  

COURT:  Mr Lewis,  I  don' t  have any further quest ions.   You 

may, unless you have anything addit ional to say. . .   - --   No.  

 I  th ink then your test imony is over and I  th ink i f  you 

would go through...   You can now leave the stand.  ---   H'm. 20 

And then address me on what further evidence you wish 

to. . .   - --   Alr ight .  

NO FURTHER QUESTIONS  

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  maybe we should just  indicate to 

Mr Lewis that  he does have an opportuni ty now should he wish25 
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to add anything extra to c lar ify anything that  he had previously 

said. 

COURT:  I  d id ask him that .       

MR KAHANOVITZ:  Oh you did ask him?  I 'm sorry,  I  d idn' t  

hear that .  5 

COURT:  I  d id ask him. 

MR LEWIS:  Can I just  take a moment?  I  just want to gather 

my thoughts.   

MR KAHANOVITZ:  M'Lord,  might I  ask to meet with you in 

chambers together with Mr Lewis?  10 

COURT:  Yes, certa in ly.   We' l l  adjourn.  

COURT ADJOURNS  (at 15:46)  


